
 

           

 

 

 

24th August, 2024 
To, 
THE DEPUTY MANAGER, 
DEPARTMENT OF CORPORATE SERVICES, 
BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED, 
PHIROZE JEEJEEBHOY TOWER, 
DALAL STREET, MUMBAI-400001 
 
REF: SCRIP CODE NO. 531870      ISIN:  INE370C01015 
 
SUB: 30th Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, enclosed please find herewith Notice convening 30th Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) and Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 of the Company, which is 
being sent through electronic mode to the Members. 
 
The AGM of the company is scheduled to be held on Monday, 16th September, 2024 at 11:30 a.m. to 
transact the business as set out in the Notice, in accordance with the relevant circulars issued by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India. 
 
The aforesaid documents are also available on the website of the Company at 
http://www.popularestatemanagement.in  
 
Kindly take the same on record. 
 
Thanking you. 
 
Yours Faithfully, 
For, POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
 
 
 
VIKRAM CHHAGANLAL PATEL  
DIRECTOR, CFO & MANAGER 
DIN: 00166707 
 
Encl: As above. 

http://www.popularestatemanagement.in/
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POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
30TH ANNUAL REPORT (2023-2024) 

 

SAFE HARBOUR STATEMENT   
In this Annual Report we have disclosed forward-looking information [within the meaning of various 
laws] to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take informed investment decisions. This 
report and other statements–written and oral-that we periodically make, contain forward-looking 
statements that set out anticipated results based on the Management’s plans and assumptions. We 
have tried wherever possible to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, 
‘estimate’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance in 
connection with any discussion of future performance. 
 
We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realized, although we believe we 
have been prudent in assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to risks, uncertainties and 
even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize or should 
underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, 
estimated or projected. Readers should bear this in mind. 
 
We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of 
new information, future events or otherwise Corporate Information. 
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COMPANY INFORMATION 
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023287 

 
Website: http://www.popularestatemanagement.in      Tel.: 079-26858881 
Email: popularestatemanagement@yahoo.co.in    Fax: 079-26854831 
            

 
Registered Office:        Bankers: 
81, 8th Floor, “A” wing, New York      Kotak Mahindra Bank 
Tower, Opp. Muktidham Derasar,      Kalupur Comm. Co-op. Bank Ltd. 
Thaltej, S. G. Highway,                                                        AU Small Finance Bank 
Ahmedabad-380054, Gujarat  
 
Statutory Auditor:        Secretarial Auditor: 
H.S. Jani & Co.         Ronak Doshi and Associates 
701/702/708, Sakar-V,       802, Mahakant Complex, 
B/h. Natraj Cinema, Ashram Road,      Opp.  V.S. Hospital, Ellis Bridge, 
Ahmedabad- 380 009        Ahmedabad-380006, Gujarat 
 
Registrars and Transfer Agents:                
Link Intime India Private Limited    
5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1),                      
Besides Gala Business Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Centre,             
Off C.G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat.  
Phone: 079-26465179/5186/5187                                 
E-mail: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in 
Website: www.linkintime.co.in 
 
  

http://www.popularestatemanagement.in/
mailto:popularestatemanagement@yahoo.co.in
mailto:ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
http://www.linkintime.co.in/
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 

Vikram Chhaganlal Patel Manager, Director and CFO 

Het Dashrathbhai Patel Director 
Saritaben Natwarbhai Patel Woman Director 
Rameshbhai Revabhai Patel Independent Director 
Sureshbhai Natverlal Patel Independent Director 
Mehul Bhagawatprasad Patel Independent Director 

 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS: 

 

Vikram Chhaganlal Patel CFO (KMP)  

Vikram Chhaganlal Patel MANAGER  
Mrs. Urvi Meet Shah Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer w.e.f. 01/02/2024 
Mrs. Sonali Panchal Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer upto 04/01/2024 

 
COMMITTEES: 

 

Designation AUDIT COMMITTEE NOMINATION AND 
REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE 

STAKEHOLDERS’ 
RELATIONSHIP 
COMMITTEE 

Chairman Mehul 
Bhagawatprasad 
Patel  

Rameshbhai 
Revabhai Patel 

Rameshbhai 
Revabhai Patel 

Member Sureshbhai 
Natverlal Patel 

Sureshbhai Natverlal 
Patel 

Sureshbhai Natverlal 
Patel 

Member Vikram Chhaganlal 
Patel  

Mehul 
Bhagawatprasad 
Patel  

Mehul 
Bhagawatprasad 
Patel 
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IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 

“Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” 
by allowing paperless compliances by the Companies and has issued a circular No.17/2011 on 
April 21, 2011 stating that the service of document to shareholders by a Company can be made 
through electronic mode. 

Keeping in view the underlying theme and to support this green initiative of Government in the 
right spirit, members who holds shares in electronic mode and who have not registered their 
email addresses, so far, are requested to register their email address and changes therein from 
time to time, with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants. Members 
who hold shares in physical form are requested to fill the below mentioned prescribed form, 
giving their consent to receive the Notices calling general meetings, audited financial 
statements, auditors’ report, directors’ report, explanatory statement or any other 
communication in electronic mode, and register the said form with Link Intime India Private 
Limited. The said form is also available on the Company’s website: 
http://www.popularestatemanagement.in  

Please note that you will be entitled to be furnished, free of cost, with a physical copy of the 
notice, balance sheet and all other documents required by law to be attached thereto including 
the profit & loss account and auditors’ report etc., upon receipt of a requisition from you, any 
time, as a member of the Company. 
 
We are sure you would appreciate the “Green Initiative” taken by MCA and your Company’s 
desire to participate in such initiatives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       

  

http://www.popularestatemanagement.in/
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Email Address Registration Form 
(For members who holds shares in Physical Form) 

POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
Registered Office: 81, 8th Floor, “A” Wing, New York Tower, Opp:  Muktidham Derasar, 

Thaltej, S. G. Highway, Ahmedabad-380054, Gujarat 
CIN:  L65910GJ1994PLC023287 

Ledger Folio No._______________________                No. of Share(s) held:___________________ 

NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER / JOINT HOLDER: 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Email Address: ___________________________________________________________________ 

Contact No. (R)______________________________ (M) _________________________________ 

I hereby give my / our consent to receive the Notices, calling general meetings, audited financial 
statements, auditors’ report, directors’ report, explanatory statement and all other documents 
required by law to be attached thereto or any other communication in electronic mode at my/our 
above mentioned email ID. 

 

Signed this ____________________day of __________________ , 2024. 
 
Note: 
 
1) Members are requested to send their duly completed form as above to the Registrar and 

Transfer Agent (RTA) namely Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath 
Business Centre-1 (ABC-1), besides Business Gala Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner, Off 
C.G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat. Tel: 07926465179 Fax: 079-26465179 

2) Members are also requested to inform about any change in their email ID immediately to RTA. 
3) This form is also available on the Company’s website: http://www.popularestatemanagement.in  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.popularestatemanagement.in/
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NOTICE TO MEMBERS 

Notice is hereby given that 30th (Thirtieth) Annual General Meeting of the members of Popular Estate 
Management Limited. (‘PEML’ or the ‘Company’) will be held on Monday, 16th September, 2024 at 
11.30 a.m. at registered office of the company situated at 81, 8th Floor, "A" wing, New York Tower, 
Opp. Muktidham Derasar, Thaltej, S. G. Highway Ahmedabad- 380054, Gujarat to transact the 
following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1) To receive, consider and adopt audited financial statements of the company for the financial 

year ended on 31st March, 2024 and the reports of Board of Directors and the Auditors’ 
thereon and in this regard to pass with or without modification the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT audited financial statements of the company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024 and the reports of the board of directors and auditors’ thereon laid before this 
meeting, be and are hereby received, considered and adopted." 
 

2) To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vikram Chhaganlal Patel (DIN: 00166707), Director who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, seeks reappointment and to pass with or without 
modification the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vikram Chhaganlal Patel, who retires by rotation, be and is hereby 
reappointed as a Director of the Company." 
 

Regd. Office:                                                         By Order of the Board  
81, 8th Floor, A-Wing,                                 For, Popular Estate Management Limited 
“New York Tower”, Opp. Muktidham Derasar,  
Thaltej, S. G. Highway, Ahmedabad-380054 
 
                                                                                         Sd/- 
                                    Vikram Chhaganlal Patel
                                Director, CFO & Manager  
                                       DIN: 00166707           
Date: 24/08/2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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NOTES: 
1. PURSUANT TO SECTION 105 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THE RULES MADE 

THEREUNDER, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT 29TH ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND, ON A POLL, VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF, SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A 
person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 [fifty] and holding in aggregate 
not more than ten (10) per cent of the total share capital of the Company. In case proxies 
proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than ten (10) percent of the total share 
capital of the company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any 
such other person or shareholder. 

2. The instrument of proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the registered office of 
the company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of 
the meeting i.e. by 11.30 a.m. on Saturday, 14th September, 2024. A Proxy form is sent herewith. 
Proxy form submitted on behalf of the Companies, Societies, etc. must be supported by an 
appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable. 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 
5, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by 
NSDL. 

4. Shareholders may note that the notice of the meeting has been placed on the company’s 
website: http://www.popularestatemanagement.in  in Annual Report Section. The Notice can 
also be accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com 
and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

5. In terms of Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vikram Chhaganlal Patel (DIN: 00166707), 
Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seeks re-
appointment. The Board of Directors of the company recommends his re-appointment. 

6. Relevant disclosure pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), relating to directors seeking appointment/re-
appointment at the Annual General Meeting of the Company: 
Profile of Retiring Directors: 

Name of the Director Vikram Chhaganlal Patel 

Director Identification No. (DIN) 00166707 

Date of Appointment 25/01/2021 

Education Qualification Graduate 

Brief Resume Including Expertise Having experience of more than 20 years in 
real estate, marketing, accounting and 
management. 

Directorship held in other listed entities NIL 

Chairman / Member of the Committees of NIL 

http://www.popularestatemanagement.in/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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the Board of the other companies on 
which he is a director   

Chairman/Member of Directors of other 
Public Company In which he is Director: 

Nil 

Disclosure of the relationships Mr. Vikram C Patel is promoter of the 
company and cousin brother of Mr. Het D 
Patel, Director and nephew of Mrs. 
Sartiben N Patel. 

No. of Shares Held In Company 684000 

No. of Board Meetings attended during 
the year 

As mentioned in Corporate Governance 
report annexed herewith. 

 
7. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the company shall remain closed from 

Monday, 9th September, 2024 to Monday, 16th September, 2024 (both days inclusive). 
8. Members are requested to contact Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) namely, Link Intime (India) 

Pvt. Ltd., 5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1), besides Business Gala 
Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner, Off C.G. Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380006, Gujarat 
for recording any change of address, bank mandate, ECS or nominations, for updating of email 
address and for redressal of complaints members can contact the Compliance Officer at the 
registered office of the company. 

9. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their client ID and DP 
ID numbers for easy identification of attendance at the meeting. 

10. Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules, the Company 
has implemented the “Green Initiative” which enables the Company to serve documents like 
notices, annual reports, etc., in electronic form to its members. It also facilitates prompt receipt 
of communications and thereby reduces postal transit losses. Accordingly, copy of the Annual 
Report is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes through e-mail unless any 
member has requested for a hard copy of the same. Members holding shares in electronic mode 
are, therefore, requested to ensure to keep their e-mail addresses updated with the Depository 
Participant. Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to get their e-mail id 
registered with RTA of the Company.  

11. All relevant documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection by the Members 
at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and 
Public Holidays) during working hours i.e. 11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. upto the date of Annual 
General Meeting and the same along with other documents as required under the applicable law 
will also be available for inspection at the time of AGM of the Company. 

12. Members desiring any information as regards the financial statements are requested to write to 
the Company at least 7 days before the date of the meeting to enable the management to keep 
the information readily available at the meeting. 

13. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in 
the securities market. Members are therefore requested to submit their PAN to their Depository 
Participants (DP). 

14. In terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended securities of listed companies can now only be 
transferred in dematerialized form, so the Members are advised to dematerialize shares held. 

15. The equity shares of the company are available for dematerialization, as the company has 
entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central 
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Depository Services Limited (CDSL). Those shareholders who wish to hold the company’s share in 
electronic form may approach their depository participants. 

16. Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, extends the nomination facility to individual 
shareholders of the Company. Therefore, the shareholders holding share certificates in physical 
form and willing to avail this facility may make nomination in Form SH-13, which may be sent on 
request. However, in case of Demat holdings; the shareholders should approach to their 
respective depository participants for making nominations. 

17. Members are requested to note that pursuant to the provisions of Section 125(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the dividend remaining unclaimed/ unpaid for the period of seven years 
from the date it becomes due for payment should be credited to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by the Central Government. The Company has already transferred 
the unclaimed/unpaid dividend declared for the year 2007-08 and 2008-09 to the said fund. 
Members who have so far not claimed the dividends declared for those years(s) are requested to 
make claim with the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) of Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs. 

18. Members, who have multiple accounts in identical names or joint names in same order, are 
requested to intimate M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, the Ledger Folios of such accounts 
to enable the company to consolidate all such share holdings into one account. 

19. Voting through electronic means: 
Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the 
company is pleased to provide the facility to members to exercise their right to vote by 
electronic means. The members desiring to vote through electronic mode may refer to the 
detailed procedure on e-voting given hereinafter: 
 

 THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING 
ARE AS UNDER:- 
The remote e-voting period begins on 13th September, 2024 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 15th 

September, 2024 at 5.00 p.m. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. 
 
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the 
record date (cut-off date) i.e. 9th September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The voting 
right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of 
the Company as on the cut-off date, being 9th September, 2024. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their Demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their Demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility. 
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 

a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 

section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 

Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to 

see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on 

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be 

able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 

option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  

Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 

page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 

which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your 

sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you 

will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 

below for seamless voting experience. 

 
 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested 
to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my 
easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting 
is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-
Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is 
also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 
is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.comand click on 
login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration 
option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to 
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
Demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.comor 
call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800-21-09911 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or 
CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 

and cast your vote. 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL 
from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. 
The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 

of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csronakdoshi@yahoo.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.com. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:csronakdoshi@yahoo.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 4430  or send a 
request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.com 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions 
set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
popularestatemanagement@yahoo.co.in.  

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
popularestatemanagement@yahoo.co.in. If you are Individual shareholders holding securities 
in Demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. 
Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM and have not casted 
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend AGM. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 
for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 
OTHER INSTRUCTIONS: 

i. Mr. Ronak D Doshi (C.P. No. 12725), Proprietor of Ronak Doshi & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretary has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members 
of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner. 

ii. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at the general meeting, first 
download the votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-
voting and shall make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or 
against, invalid votes, if any and whether the resolutions have been carried or not and such 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:popularestatemanagement@yahoo.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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report shall then be sent to the Chairman or a person authorized by him within 2 (two) working 
days from the conclusion of the AGM, who shall then countersign and declare the result of the 
voting forthwith. 

iii. The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of 
the company, http://www.popularestatemanagement.in and on the website of NSDL 
immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him. The 
results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai. 

iv. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be 
passed on the date of the Meeting i.e. Monday, 16th September, 2024. 
 

       

 
 

http://www.popularestatemanagement.in/


POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LTD    CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023287 

17 | P a g e                 30TH ANNUAL REPORT (2023-2024) 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
To, 
The Members, 
Popular Estate Management Limited  
Ahmedabad 

Your directors are presenting herewith their 30th (Thirtieth) Annual Report together with the Audited 
Statements of Accounts for the period ended 31st March, 2024. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS:                                                                                                                        (In Rs.) 

Particulars  Current Year Ended on 
31/03/2024 

Current Year Ended on 
31/03/2023 

Income from operations 0.00 0.00 

Other Income 0.00 123.00 

Depreciation & amortization 18,26,505.00 26,21,994.00 

Expenses other than Depreciation 49,77,174.00 63,52,753.00 

Preliminary Exp. Written off  0.00 0.00 

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (68,03,679.00) (89,74,624.00) 

Current Tax 0.00 0.00 

Deferred Tax 0.00 0.00 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax (68,03,679.00) (89,74,624.00) 

Proposed Dividend  0.00 0.00 

Provision for dividend distribution Tax 0.00 0.00 

Profit/(Loss) after Tax & Dividend  (68,03,679.00) (89,74,624.00) 

Bal. Brought Forward 29,46,16,818.00 30,35,91,442.00 

Less : Income Tax paid for previous year 0.00 0.00 

Less : Short Provision of Taxes of earlier years 0.00 0.00 

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 28,78,13,139.00 29,46,16,818.00 

 
DIVIDEND: 
The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the year 2023-24. (Previous year: NIL). 
 
PRESENT OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS: 
During the year under review, the Company has not generated any revenue from operations against 
Nil of the previous year. The net loss after tax for the year under review has been Rs. 68,03,679 as 
against loss of Rs. 89,74,624/- during the previous financial year. Your Directors are continuously 
looking for the new avenues for future growth of the Company and expect more growth in future 
period. 
A detailed analysis of the financial results is given in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, 
which forms part of this report. 
 
RESERVES AND SURPLUS: 
The Company had reserves and surplus of Rs. 28,78,13,139/- in the present financial year as against 
the reserve and surplus of Rs. 29,46,16,818/- during the previous financial year. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

I. APPOINTMENT & RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS: 

During the financial year 2023-24 there were no changes in the composition of board of directors of 
the company. At present, the structure of Board of Directors is as follows: 

 

Sr. No. CATEGORY NAME OF DIRECTORS 

Promoter and Executive Director 

1. Director, CFO & Manager Vikram Chhaganlal Patel  

2 Director Shri Het D Patel 

Woman Director 

3. Woman Director Smt. Saritaben Natwarbhai Patel 

Independent Directors 

6. Independent Director Shri Sureshbhai Natwarlal Patel 

8. Independent Director Shri Rameshbhai Revabhai Patel 
 

9. Independent Director Mehul Patel 

 
II. RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION: 
Pursuant to Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vikram Chhaganlal Patel (DIN: 00166707), will 
retire by rotation at ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seeks re-appointment as the 
Director of the company and his brief profile is given in this report as notes to the notice. 
 
COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER: 
During the year under review, Mrs. Urvi Meet Shah who is a member of ICSI having membership no. 
ACS 73067 has been appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 
1st February, 2024 in place of Mrs. Sonali Panchal (Membership No. ACS 23824), Company Secretary 
and Compliance officer who resigned w.e.f. 4th January, 2024.  
 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) AND MANAGER: 
Mr. Vikram Chhaganlal Patel (DIN: 00166707 & PAN: AGUPP0288P) has been CFO and Manager of the 
company. 
 
SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY: 
The company has no subsidiary company, joint venture company or associate company. 
 
DEPOSIT: 
During the year under review your company has not accepted deposit from public as envisaged by 
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
During the year, the company has not entered into any materially significant related party transactions 
which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company and stakeholders at large.  
Suitable disclosures as required are provided in AS-18 which is forming part of the notes to the 
financial statement. 
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POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:  
The requisite details as required by Section 134(3) (e), Section 178(3) & (4) and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are annexed as Annexure A to this Report. 
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
There is no change in the nature of the business of the company during the year. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/ OUTGO: 
As required by the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 
1988 the relevant data pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption are not applicable 
and hence, not given. Moreover, the Company has no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
There are no employees drawing the remuneration in excess of limits prescribed under Rule 5 of 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  
Further the following details form part of Annexure B and Annexure C to the Board’s Report: 

i) Pursuant to Rule 5 (2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel)  Rules, 2014 statement containing the names and other particulars of top ten 
employees in terms of remuneration drawn by them- Annexure B 

ii) Disclosure under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014- Annexure C 

 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY WHICH HAS OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY 
TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT: 
During the year under review, no material changes and commitments occurred which affect the 
financial position of the company.  
 
SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:  
The company had also made an application for revocation of suspension of trading in equity shares of 
the company. 
 
Accordingly, the company has been granted in-principle approval for revocation of suspension in 
trading of securities of company on 29/03/2023 and the company has also received post approval for 
revocation of suspension in trading of equity shares of company on 21/06/2023 and the suspension of 
trading in equity shares was revoked and trading in shares was started w.e.f. 30/06/2023. 
 
CHANGES IN SHARES CAPITAL: 
The company has not made any changes in the share capital of the company during the year under 
review. 
 
INSURANCE: 
All the assets of the company are adequately insured and the company has developed proper system 
for taking insurance on all its insurable assets in order to mitigate the risk. 
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AUDITORS: 
I. STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT: 
The statutory auditors namely, M/s. H.S. Jani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 127515W) 
has been appointed as a Statutory Auditor of the company since 27th August, 2021 for a period of 5 
years to hold office until the conclusion of the 31st Annual General Meeting of the company in 
calendar year 2025. 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide notification dated 7th May, 2018 has come with the amendment in 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2018 regarding non requirement of ratification of 
Auditor at every Annual General Meeting after his appointment as a Statutory Auditor of the 
Company. Therefore, ratification of appointment of auditor is not proposed in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 
 
AUDITORS’ REPORT: 
The auditors’ report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark(s) on the 
financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2024. The notes of accounts referred to in the auditors’ 
report are self explanatory and therefore do not require any further comments. 
 
II. INTERNAL CONTROL AUDITOR AND SYSTEM: 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act and rules made there under, the 
company has proper system of Internal Control and it has also appointed internal auditor to look after 
the matters of internal control. 
Adequate internal control systems commensurate with the nature of the Company’s business and size 
and complexity of its operations are in place and have been operating satisfactorily. Internal control 
systems comprising of policies and procedures are designed to ensure reliability of financial reporting, 
timely feedback on achievement of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies, 
procedure, applicable laws and regulations. Internal control systems are designed to ensure that all 
assets and resources are acquired economically, used efficiently and adequately protected. 
  
III. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Act and The Companies [Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Ronak Doshi & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad to undertake Secretarial Audit for the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2024. Secretarial Audit Report is attached to this report as Form MR-3 as 
Annexure D. The Board has duly reviewed the Secretarial Auditor’s Report and the observations and 
comments, appearing in the report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
explanation/clarification by the Board of Directors as provided under section 134 of the Act. 
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in Form MGT-9 is not 
required to be annexed herewith in Board report of the company. However, the company is having 
website i.e.: http://www.popularestatemanagement.in and copy of annual return of company will be 
published on the website once it will be filed.  
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 
During the year under review, the company is outside the purview of Section 135 of Companies Act, 
2013 related to Corporate Social Responsibility. 
 

http://www.popularestatemanagement.in/
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ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY: 
The Company accords the highest priority to Environment, Health and Safety. The management is 
constantly reviewing the safety standards of the employees and the management believes in the 
concept of sustainable development. 
 
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:  
Industrial Relations during the year under review continued to be cordial. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND FINANCIAL REPORTING: 
The Company incorporates the accounting standards as and when issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. The company complied with the Stock Exchange and legal requirement 
concerning the Financial Statements at the time of preparing them for the Annual Report. Moreover, 
the Balance sheet of the Company has been converted and presented as per Indian Accounting 
Standards - IND AS. 
 
MANAGING THE RISKS OF FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND UNETHICAL BUSINESS PRACTICES: 
i. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 

The Company has established vigil mechanism and framed whistle blower policy for Directors and 
employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. 

ii. Business Conduct Policy: 
The Company has framed “Business Conduct Policy”. Every employee is required to review and 
sign the policy at the time of joining and an undertaking shall be given for adherence to the Policy. 
The objective of the Policy is to conduct the business in an honest, transparent and in an ethical 
manner. The policy provides for anti-bribery and avoidance of other corruption practices by the 
employees of the Company. 

 
TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 
The company is not paying any dividend since last many years and hence, there is no money lying with 
the Company which is to be required transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 
In terms of Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 the Corporate Governance Report, the Management Discussion & Analysis 
Statement, and the Auditors’ Certificate regarding Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance 
are part of this Annual Report. 
 
DEMATERIALISATION OF EQUITY SHARES: 
As per direction of the SEBI and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, the shares of the Company are under 
compulsory Demat form. The Company has established connectivity with both the Depositories i.e. 
National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited and the Demat 
activation number allotted to the Company is ISIN: INE370C01015. Presently, shares are held in 
electronic and physical mode (87.28% of shares in Demat, 12.72% in physical mode). 
 
LISTING: 
The equity shares of the company are listed in the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited which has the 
connectivity in most of the cities across the country. However, the trading of shares was suspended 
due to penal reasons w.e.f. 11/06/2021 and the management had filed application for revocation of 
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suspension of trading in shares with BSE on 10th June, 2022 and the same is approved by BSE on 
21/06/2023 and the trading in equity shares has activated w.e.f. 30/06/2023. 
 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
The Board of Directors duly met at regular intervals during the mentioned financial year and in respect 
of which meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed 
in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose. The details regarding the meetings of board of 
directors and the attendance of the directors in the same is mentioned in Corporate Governance 
Report. 
 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
The Audit Committee duly met at regular intervals during the mentioned financial year and in respect 
of which meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed 
in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose. The details regarding the meetings of Audit 
Committee and the attendance of the committee members in the same is mentioned in Corporate 
Governance Report. 
 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee duly met at regular intervals during the mentioned 
financial year and in respect of which meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were 
properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose. The details regarding 
the meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the attendance of the committee 
members in the same is mentioned in Corporate Governance Report. 
 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
The Stakeholder relationship Committee duly met at regular intervals during the mentioned financial 
year and in respect of which meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly 
recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose. The details regarding the 
meetings of stakeholder relationship Committee and the attendance of the committee members in 
the same is mentioned in Corporate Governance Report. 
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL ACT, 2013): 
The Company has implemented an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. 
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual 
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this 
policy. 
 
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
In accordance with the provision of section 134(5) the Board confirms and submits the Director’s 
Responsibility Statement:- 

a) In preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b) The Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of 
the company for that period;  
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c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

d) The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and 
e) The Directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal financial controls to be 

followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively.  

f) The Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provision of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:- 
Pursuant to the provisions of sub-section (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company 
has received individual declarations from all the Independent Directors mentioned below, confirming 
that they fulfil the criteria of independence as specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,2013. 

1. Mr. Rameshbhai Revabhai Patel  

2. Mr. Sureshbhai Natverlal Patel 

3. Mr. Mehul Bhagawatprasad Patel. 

 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 
During the period under report, the Company has not provided any loans, guarantee or security to any 
person or Body Corporate under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
BOARD EVALUATION: 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR), 2015, the Board has carried 
out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually, as well as, 
the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholders' Relationship 
Committees. The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking feedback from 
all the Directors on the basis of the parameters/criteria, such as, degree of fulfillment of key 
responsibility by the Board, Board Structures and Composition, establishment and delineation of 
responsibilities to the Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, 
Board culture and dynamics and, Quality of relationship between the Board and the Management. The 
performance of the committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee was evaluated by the Board after seeking feedback from 
Committee members on the basis of parameters/criteria such as degree of fulfillment of key 
responsibilities, adequacy of committee composition, effectiveness of meetings, committee dynamics 
and, quality of relationship of the committee with the Board and the Management. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT: 
The company has developed and implemented a risk management system which identifies major risks 
which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your Board 
and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures have been 
also formulated and clearly spelled out.  
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 
Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the financial institutions, 
Company’s bankers and customers, vendors and investors for their continued support during the year.  
Your Directors are also pleased to record their appreciation for the dedication and contribution made 
by employees at all levels who through their competence and hard work have enabled your Company 
achieve good performance year after year and look forward to their support in future as well. 
 
Regd. Office:                                                         By Order of the Board  
81, 8th Floor, A-Wing,                                 For, Popular Estate Management Limited 
“New York Tower”, Opp. Muktidham Derasar,  
Thaltej, S. G. Highway, Ahmedabad-380054 
 
                                               Sd/-       Sd/- 
        VIKRAM CHHAGANLAL PATEL          HET D PATEL 
                            DIRECTOR, CFO & MANAGER           DIRECTOR 
           DIN: 00166707                       DIN: 06986909 
Date: 24/08/2024 
 
 

  

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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ANNEXURE-A 
POLICY OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF THE COMPANY 
Policy for Identification of Persons for Appointment and Removal as Director and Senior Managerial 
Personnel: 
 
THE COMMITTEE SHALL: 

1. Identify and ascertain the honesty, reliability, qualification, expertise and experience of the 
person for appointment as Director or Senior Managerial Personnel and recommend the Board 
accordingly. 

2. The Committee must ensure itself regarding the capabilities and eligibilities of the proposed 
appointee(s) and must ensure that the proposed appointee shall be able to devote the 
required time as may be necessary. 

3. The Committee shall be at discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience 
possessed by the person are adequate for the proposed position. 

4. Any other assessment as may be required must be carried out by the Committee and on being 
satisfied with the overall eligibility of the person, the Committee shall recommend his/her 
appointment to the Board accordingly. 

5. With respect to Independent Directors of the Company, the Committee shall additionally 
ensure the independence of the Directors as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. 

6. The Committee may recommend to the Board with the reasons recorded in writing, the 
removal of director or Senior Managerial Personnel based on any disqualification that may be 
applicable as per the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder or 
for any other reasons as may be justified by the Committee. 

 
TERM OF APPOINTMENT: 
The term of Appointment of Managing Director/Whole-time Directors and Independent Directors of 
the Company shall be as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder. 
 
RETIREMENT: 
The Managing Director/Whole-time Directors and Independent Directors of the Company shall be 
subject to retirement as per applicable to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. 
The Committee will be at its discretion to recommend retention of Directors even after they have 
attained the retirement age for the benefit of the Company subject to fulfillment of the requirements 
as mentioned in Companies Act, 2013. 
 
POLICY FOR EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL 
DIRECTORS: 

1. Evaluation of performance of Board and Individual Directors: 
a. Achievement of financial/business targets as fixed by the Board; 
b. Proper development, management and execution of business plans; 
c. Display of leadership qualities i.e. correctly anticipating business trends and opportunities; 
d. Establishment of an effective organization structure; 
e. Participation in the Board/Committee Meetings; 
f. Integrity and maintenance of confidentiality; 
g. Any other criteria that may be considered necessary for the evaluation of the performance 

of the Board may be considered by the Committee. 
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2. Evaluation of performance of Committees: 
a. Discharge of its functions and duties as per its terms of reference; 
b. Effectiveness of suggestions and recommendations received; 
c. Conduct of its meeting and procedures followed in this regard. 

3. Review of the Implementation of this policy: 
The committee shall review the implementation and compliance of this policy at least once in a year. 
 
POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
The remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel must be in accordance to the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under. The Committee must ensure that the level and 
composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of 
the quality required to run the company successfully. 
 
The relationship of remuneration to the performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks. 
 
DETAILS OF REMUNERATION: 
 
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:  
 
During the F.Y. 2023-24, the company has not paid any remuneration to executive directors of the 
company. 
 
B) NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:  
 
During the F.Y. 2023-24, the company has not paid any remuneration/ sitting fees to any Non-
Executive Director of the company. Moreover, the Non-Executive Directors have no pecuniary 
relationship with the Company in their personal capacity. 
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ANNEXURE-B 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS PER RULE 5(2) OF COMPANIES  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                          
  

SR.
NO 

NAME & 
DESIGNATION 

REMUNE-
RATION 
(PER 
ANNUM) 

NATURE OF 
EMPLOYMENT 

QUALIFICAT
ION & 
EXPERIENCE 

YEAR/DATE 
OF 
COMMENCE
MENT OF 
EMPLOYME
NT & 
HIS/HER AGE 

LAST 
EMPLOYM
ENT HELD 

% OF 
EQUITY 
SHARES 
HELD 

RELATIVE 
OF ANY 
DIRECTOR/
MANAGER 
OF THE 
COMPANY 

1. Alpesh J Patel-
Senior 
Accountant 

1,80,000 Non-
Managerial 

B.Com, LLB 
Graduate 
Exp. of 35 
years 

15/12/2014 
Age-60 

RKC 
Infrabuild 
Pvt. Ltd. 

Nil Not related 

2. Mansinh L 
Rajput-Driver 

1,80,000 Non-
Managerial 

10th Pass 
Exp. of 28 
years 

01/11/1994 
Age: 55 

   N.A. 0.01% Not related 

3. Urvi Meet Shah 30,000 Managerial Company 
Secretary, 
Exp. of 5 
years 

01/08/2020 
Age: 30 

Gala Global 
Products 
Ltd. 

Nil Not related 

4. Sonali Panchal 1,50,000 Managerial Company 
Secretary, 
Exp. of 5 
years 

05/07/2022 
Age: 44 

Shree 
Metalloys 
Limited 

Nil Not related 

5. Vishwanath A 
Raval-Driver 

1,80,000 Non-
Managerial 

7th Pass 
26 years 

01/11/1994 
Age: 55 

N.A. 0.01% Not related 

6. Beenaben D 
Dave-receptionist 

1,62,000 Non-
Managerial 

12th Pass 
Exp. of 29 
years 

14/10/1994 
Age-45 

N.A. 0.01% Not related 

7. Harshaben S 
Shah- Accountant 

1,46,400 Non-
Managerial 

B.Com 
Exp. of 28 
years 

01/12/1994 
Age: 54 

N.A. 0.02% Not related 

8. Rajesh D Patel-
Peon 

1,01,760 Non-
Managerial 

9th Pass 
28 years 

01/11/1994 
Age-53 

New Sorath 
Mill 

0.001% Not related 

9. Ramesh N 
Parekh-Peon 

86,160 Non-
Managerial 

9th Pass 
28 years 

01/11/1994 
Age-57 

N.A. NIL Not related 
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ANNEXURE-C 
DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
 

A. The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of 
the Company for the financial year 2023-24. 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Remuneration Median 
Remuneration 

Ratio 

1. Vikram Chhaganlal Patel Nil 1,50,000 0 

2. Het Dashrathbhai Patel Nil 1,50,000 0 

 
B. The percentage increase/decrease in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, 

Chief Executive officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2023-24. 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation % Increase/ 
Decrease 

1. VIKRAM CHHAGANLAL PATEL CFO 0% 

2. SONALI PANCHAL * COMPANY 
SECRETARY & 
COMPLIANCE 
OFFICER 

0% 

3. URVI MEET SHAH** COMPANY 
SECRETARY & 
COMPLIANCE 
OFFICER 

0% 

*Mrs. Sonali Panchal resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance officer  
w.e.f. 04/01/2024. 

     **Mrs. Urvi Meet Shah was appointed as Company Secretary and compliance officer w.e.f. 
01/02/2024. 

 
C. The percentage decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2023-

24: 0% 
 
D. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company in the Financial Year 2023-

24: 08 
 
E. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase 
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any 
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration; 

 Average remuneration increase for non-managerial personnel of the company during the 
financial year was 0% and the average remuneration decrease for the managerial personnel 
was 0%. Remuneration increase or decrease depends on the company’s performance as a 
whole, individual performance level and also market benchmarks. 

 
F. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company; 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the company. 
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 RONAK DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 

PHONE: 079-40026633 M: +91-9033009739 EMAIL: csronakdoshi@yahoo.com 
802, Mahakant Complex, Opp. V.S. Hospital, Ellis Bridge, Ahmedabad-380006 

=================================================================================== 

ANNEXURE -D 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  

For the Financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To, 
The members 
POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
81, 8TH FLOOR, New York TOWER-A,  
Opp. Muktidham Derasar,  
S.G. Highway, Thaltej, Ahmedabad-54  
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Popular Estate Management Limited (hereinafter called 
“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report 
that in my opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 

1. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Popular Estate Management Limited (“The Company”) for the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of: 
 
I.   The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and rules made thereunder to the extent applicable; 
II.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and rules made thereunder; 
III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings (However, no foreign transaction was done by the Company); 

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 

mailto:csronakdoshi@yahoo.com
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a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (Subject to matter of emphasis) and 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to a Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 

2. Provisions of the following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the company during the financial year 
under report:- 

 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and 
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 
  

3. I have been informed by the company that there are no specific laws applicable to the company 
considering the nature of its business. 

 
4. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

     i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013; and 

ii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

During the period under review the company has mostly complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards and Listing Agreements etc.  
 
I further report that: 
The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted as on date of this report with proper 
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. No changes were 
made in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review and changes made 
in the Key Managerial personnel (KMP) was according to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and . 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 
 
During the period under review all the decisions in the Board Meetings were carried out unanimously 
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  
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I have relied on the representation made by the company, its officers and reports of the Statutory 
Auditor for system and mechanism framed by the company for compliances under other Acts, Laws 
and Regulations applicable to the company. 
 
I further report that based on the information received from management and records maintained; 
there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines. 
 
MATTERS OF EMPHASIS:  
Then, as informed to us by the management of the company, they had made an application for 
revocation of suspension of trading in equity shares of the company. 
 
Accordingly, the company has been granted in-principle approval for revocation of suspension in 
trading of securities of company on 29/03/2023 and the company has also received post approval for 
revocation of suspension in trading of equity shares of company on 21/06/2023 and the suspension of 
trading in equity shares was revoked and trading in shares was started w.e.f. 30/06/2023. 
 
 
 
Place: Ahmedabad      For, Ronak Doshi & Associates 
Date:  24/08/2024   Practicing Company Secretary 
UDIN: A023712F001006881  
 
                             Sd/- 
                 Ronak D Doshi 
                 Proprietor 
                             Membership No. 23712 
                 C. P. No. 12725 
         PRC No.: 1698/2022 
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 RONAK DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 

PHONE: 079-40026633 M: +91-9033009739 EMAIL: csronakdoshi@yahoo.com 
802, Mahakant Complex, Opp. V.S. Hospital, Ellis Bridge, Ahmedabad-380006 

=================================================================================== 
To, 
The Members, 
POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
81, 8th Floor, New York Tower-A,  
Opp. Muktidham Derasar,  
S.G. Highway, Thaltej, Ahmedabad-54  
 
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
Management’s Responsibility: 

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the company to maintain secretarial records, 

devise proper systems, to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively. 

Auditor’s Responsibility:  
2. My responsibility is to express opinion on these secretarial records, systems, standards and 

procedures based on my audit. 

3. Whenever, required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the 

compliance of law, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

Disclaimer:  
     4.   The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future visibility of the company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the company. 

 
 
Place: Ahmedabad      For, Ronak Doshi & Associates 
Date:  24/08/2024   Practicing Company Secretary 
UDIN: A023712F001006881  
 
                             Sd/- 
                 Ronak D Doshi 
                 Proprietor 
                              Membership No. 23712 
                 C. P. No. 12725 
         PRC No.: 1698/2022 

 
 
 
 

mailto:csronakdoshi@yahoo.com
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
A. BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS :  

Turnover: 
Popular Estate Management Limited has no turnover in financial year 2023-24 against no 
turnover in the previous year 2022-23.  
 
Employee Benefit Expenses: 
Employee’s emoluments (other than managerial remuneration) are Rs. 12.16 lakh during the 
year as against Rs. 11.66 Lakh during the previous year. 
 
Administrative and Other Expenses: 
Major components of administrative and other expenses includes printing and stationary, 
electricity charges, audit fees, advertisement expenses, postage and stamps, listing and ROC 
filing fees, insurance premium etc. Administrative and other expenses for the year amounted to 
Rs. 37.61 Lakh as against Rs. 49.78 Lakh during the previous year. 
 
Interest and Finance Charges: 
Interest and finance charges / bank charges during the year amounted to nil as against Rs. 2.08 
Lakh during the previous year. 
 
Depreciation: 
Depreciation charge for the current year came to Rs. 18.27 Lakh as against Rs. 26.22 Lakh of the 
previous year. 
 
Provision for Tax:   
The Company has made loss so there is no provision for tax. As there is no dividend payable this 
year, the company has not provided any amount for dividend distribution tax.  
 
Profit/Loss after Tax: 
The Company has made loss in the current year of Rs. 68.04 Lakh as against loss of Rs. 89.75 Lakh 
during the previous year.  

 
Earnings per Share: 
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the current year worked out to Rs. (0.49) as against Rs. 
(0.64) during the previous year. 

 
Financial Condition: 
Non Current Liabilities: 
The company’s Non Current Liabilities includes Long Term borrowings Rs.  797.89 Lakh as against 
Long Term Borrowings of Rs. 759.99 Lakh in the previous year. 
 
Current Liabilities:  
The company’s Current Liabilities includes Trade payables and other financial Liabilities 
amounting to Rs.  46.62 Lakh as at 31st March 2024 against Rs. 35.45 Lakh of the previous year. 
 
Fixed Assets: 
Net block of the fixed assets at the end of the year is Rs. 77.33 Lakh as against Rs. 95.53  Lakh in 
the previous year. 
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Non Current Investments: 
Non-current investments of the company are Rs. 82.87 Lakh as at 31st March 2024 against Rs. 
82.87 Lakh of the previous year. 
 
Current Assets:  
During the year, the company has current assets of Rs.  4898.12 Lakh as against Rs. 4898.81 Lakh 
of the previous year. 
 

B. SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE : 
The company is operating in only one segment i.e. Infrastructure / Construction. Though, the 
infrastructure/construction/real estate sector is very bearish since last many years, our company 
has performed well as compared to the previous year. 
 

C. AN INDUSTRY OVERVIEW : 
In India, the real estate sector is the second-highest employment generator, after the agriculture 
sector. Real estate sector in India is expected to reach US$ 1 trillion in market size by 2030, up 
from US$ 200 billion in 2021. By 2025, it will contribute 13% to country’s GDP. Emergence of 
nuclear families, rapid urbanization and rising household income are likely to remain the key 
drivers for growth in all spheres of real estate, including residential, commercial, and retail. 
Rapid urbanization in the country is pushing the growth of real estate. More than 70-75% of 
India’s GDP will be contributed by urban areas by 2030. 
 
Around 40 million square feet were delivered in India in 2021. It is expected that the country will 
have a 40% market share in the next 2-3 years. India is expected to deliver 60 million square feet 
in 2025-26. 
India’s real estate sector saw over 1,700 acres of land deals in the top 7 cities in 1 year. Foreign 
investments in the commercial real estate sector were at US$ 10.3 billion between the years 
2017 to 2021. As of February 2022, Developers expect demand for office spaces in SEZs to shoot 
up after the replacement of the existing SEZs act. 
 
According to Savills India, real estate demand for data centers is expected to increase by 15-18 
million sq. ft. by 2025. 
According to the Economic Times Housing Finance Summit, about 3 houses are built per 1,000 
people per year compared with the required construction rate of 5 houses per 1,000 
population. The current shortage of housing in urban areas is estimated to be ~10 million units. 
An additional 25 million units of affordable housing are required by 2030 to meet the growth in 
the country’s urban population. 
 
The Government of India has been supportive towards the real estate sector. The Government 
has also raised FDI (Foreign Direct Investment) limits for townships and settlements 
development projects to 100%. Real estate projects within Special Economic Zones (SEZ) are also 
permitted for 100% FDI. Construction is the third-largest sector in terms of FDI inflow. Indian real 
estate is expected to attract a substantial amount of FDI in the next two years with US$ 8 billion 
capital infusion by F.Y. 2022. As of June 30, 2021, India formally approved 427 SEZs. 
Government of India’s Housing for All initiative is expected to bring US$ 1.3 trillion investments 
in the housing sector by 2025. As of December 2019, under Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (Urban) 
[PMAY (U)], 1.12 crores houses were sanctioned in urban areas, with a potential to create 1.20 
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crores jobs. The scheme is expected to push affordable housing and construction in the country 
and give a boost to the real estate sector.  
 
The low home loan interest rates regime is expected to drive the housing demand and increase 
sales by 35-40% in the festive season in 2023. 
 
The Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs has recommended all the states to consider reducing 
stamp duty of property transactions in a bid to push real estate activity, generate more revenue 
and aid economic growth. 
 
Strength: 

 Management depth and ability to manage client / customer relationships 

 Enhanced presence in the market   
 

Opportunities and Threats: 
The infrastructure industry is subject to tough competition amongst various segments within and 
outside the country. The threat of competition is comparatively less in the area in which your 
company is operating. The increase in demand from business sector will provide opportunity to 
your company to increase more market share. Moreover, Indian infrastructure industry 
witnessing changes in business dynamics. 
 

D. RISKS AND CONCERNS : 
Your company is mainly focusing on real estate and infrastructure. Apart from the risk on 
account of interest rate and regulatory changes, business of the company are exposed to certain 
operating business risks, which is mitigated by regular monitoring and corrective actions. The 
company has taken necessary measures to safe guard its assets and interest etc.  The risk of 
changes in the governmental policies is also there. 
 

E. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY : 
The company has proper and adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size 
and nature of operations to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded, 
transactions are authorized, recorded and reported properly and to monitor internal business 
process, financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws. 
 
The internal control system has been designed so as to ensure that the financial and other 
records are reliable and reflects a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s business. A 
qualified and independent committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy 
and effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests improvements for strengthening 
them. 

 
F. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT : 

The Company believes that human resource is the most important assets of the organization. It is 
not shown in the corporate balance sheet, but influences appreciably the growth, progress, 
profits and the shareholders’ values. During the year your company continued its efforts aimed 
at improving the HR policies and processes to enhance its performance. The vision and mission 
of the company is to create culture and value system and behavioral skills to insure achievement 
of its short and long term objectives.  
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Cautionary Statement: 
Statement made in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the company’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations may be “Forward-looking statements” within the 
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those 
expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s 
operations include economic conditions affecting demand supply and price conditions in the 
markets in which the company operates changes in the government regulations, tax laws & other 
statutes and other incidental factors. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
Corporate Governance and practices in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015: 

 
1. Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance : 

The Company’s Philosophy on investor service and protection envisages the attainment of the 
highest levels of transparency, accountability and equity, in all facets of its operations, and in 
all its interactions with its stakeholders including shareholders, employees, the government 
and lenders. The Company is committed to achieve the highest standards of corporate 
governance. The Company believes that all its operations and actions must serve the 
underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value over a sustained period of time. The 
Company continues to take necessary steps towards achieving this goal. 

 
2. Composition of Board of Directors & KMPs :  

The present Board of Directors consists of half of Non-executive- Independent directors. As on 
date, the Board comprises of 3 (three) whole time/ executive directors and 3 (Three) non 
executive and independent directors.  
 
The company does not have chairman and the number of non-executive/independent directors 
is 50% of the total number of directors. The Company, therefore, meets with the requirements 
relating to the composition of the Board of Directors.  
 
The composition and category of Directors & KMP are as follows: 
 

CATEGORY NAME OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL 

Promoter & Executive Directors Shri Vikram C Patel 
(Promoter, Director, Manager & CFO) 
Shri Het D Patel 
(Promoter & Director)  
Smt. Saritaben N Patel 
(Promoter & woman Director) 

Non- Executive Independent 
Directors 
 

Shri Mehul B. Patel 
Shri. Sureshbhai N. Patel  
Shri. Rameshbhai R Patel  

Key Managerial Personnel Mrs. Sonali Panchal 
(Company Secretary and Compliance Officer) 
Upto  04/01/2024 
Mrs. Urvi Meet Shah 
(Company Secretary and Compliance Officer) 
w.e.f 01/02/2024 
Mr. Vikram C Patel  
(Chief Financial Officer and Manager)  

 
 
 
 
 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LTD    CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023287 

38 | P a g e                 30TH ANNUAL REPORT (2023-2024) 

 

Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se:  
 

Name of directors  Relationship with other Director  

Mr. Vikram C Patel Cousin brother of Mr. Het D Patel who is Director of 
the company and nephew of Mrs. Saritaben N Patel 

Mr. Het D Patel Cousin brother of Mr. Vikram C Patel who is Promoter, 
Director, Manager and CFO of the company and 
nephew of Mrs. Saritaben N Patel 

Mrs. Saritaben N Patel Wife of Late Shri Natwarlal B Patel and aunt of Mr. 
Vikram C Patel and Het D Patel. 

Mr. Sureshbhai N. Patel  
 

Not, in any way, concern / interested / related with 
any of the other directors of the company  

Mr. Rameshbhai R Patel Not, in any way, concern / interested / related with 
any of the other directors of the company 

Mr. Mehul Patel Not, in any way, concern / interested / related with 
any of the other directors of the company 

 
Number of Board Meetings held and dates on which held: 
Five Board Meetings were held during the year under review and the gap between two meetings did 
not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were held on 29/05/2023, 14/08/2023, 
01/09/2023, 26/10/2023 and 31/01/2024 The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 
 
Attendance of each Director at the Board meetings, Last Annual General Meeting and Number of 
Other Directorships and Chairmanships / Memberships of Committees of each Director in various 
companies, during the year 2023-24: 

*No. of Directorship excludes directorship of Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, 
Companies license under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Alternate Directorship. 
Note: 

I) Details of the Committee membership / chairmanship were in accordance with the 
Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as on 31/03/2023. 

II) None of the Directors of the company is a member of more than ten committees nor is the 
Chairman of more than five Committees across all the Companies in which he is a Director. 
 

The information as required under Regulation 17(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is made available 
to the Board. The agenda and the papers for consideration at the Board meeting are circulated to the 

Name Of Directors Attendance particulars No. of Directorships* and Committee 
Memberships / Chairmanships 

Board 
Meetings 

Last AGM 
held on 
29/09/2023 

Other 
Directorship 

Committee 
Membership 

Committee 
Chairman-
ship 

Vikram C Patel 5 Present None 1 None 

Het D Patel 5 Present None# None None 

Saritaben N Patel        5  Present None None None 

Rameshbhai R Patel 5 Present None 2 2 

Suresh N. Patel  5 No None 3 None 

Mehul B Patel 5 No None 3 1 
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Directors in advance before the meeting. Adequate information is circulated as part of the Board 
papers and is also made available at the Board Meeting to enable the Board to take informed 
decisions. Where it is not practicable to attach supporting / relevant document(s) to the Agenda, the 
same are tabled at the meeting and specific reference to this is made in the agenda. 
 
CFO Certification: 
Mr. Vikram C Patel, Chief Financial officer of the company is giving annual certification on financial 
reporting and internal controls to the Board in compliance with Regulation 17[8] of SEBI [Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015 [Listing Regulations]. 

 
Code of Conduct: 
The Company has formulated and implemented a Code of Conduct for all Board members and senior 
management personnel of the Company in compliance with Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
Presently, the audit committee comprises of Mr. Mehul B Patel as chairman and Mr. Suresh N Patel 
and Mr. Vikram C Patel as members of the Audit committee. All the members are having financial and 
accounting knowledge. 
 
The constitution, composition and functioning of the Audit Committee meets with the requirements of 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
 
The Committee periodically discussed the Financial Reporting process, reviewed the Financial 
Statements, and discussed the quality of the applied accounting principles and significant judgment 
that affected the Company’s Financial Statements. Before presenting the audited accounts to the 
members of the Board, the Audit Committee recommended the appointment of the statutory 
auditors, subject to the Board’s approval. The audit Committee reviewed with adequacy of internal 
control systems with the management, statutory and internal auditors. 
 
Terms of Reference: 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include approving and implementing the audit 
procedures, reviewing financial reporting systems, internal control systems and control procedures 
and ensuring compliance with the regulatory guidelines and also include those specified under the 
Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as well as under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 
Powers of the Audit Committee: 
The Audit Committee has powers that include the following: 

a) To investigate any activity of the Company within its terms of reference  
b) To seek information from any employee  
c) To obtain outside legal and other professional advice  
d) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers   necessary. 
 

Audit Committee Meetings: 
During the year under review, the committee conducted five meetings during the year under review, 
dated 29/05/2023, 14/08/2023, 01/09/2023, 26/10/2023 and 31/01/2024. 
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Attendance of Audit Committee Meeting:  
 

Name of Committee 
Members 

Category/ Status Designation No. of Meeting 
attended 

Mr. Mehul B. Patel Non-executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 5 

Mr. Sureshbhai N. Patel Non-executive Independent 
Director 

Member 5 

Mr. Vikram C. Patel  Executive Promoter Director Member 5 

 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
The Nomination and Remuneration committee is entrusted with the responsibility of finalizing the 
remuneration of Executive / Whole Time Directors. 

  
Presently, the Nomination and Remuneration committee comprises of Mr. Ramesh Revabhai Patel as 
Chairman and Mr. Suresh N Patel and Mr. Mehul B Patel as members. The constitution of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee meets with the requirements under Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings: 
The Committee conducted four meetings during the year under review, dated 29/05/2023, 
14/08/2023, 26/10/2023 and 31/01/2024. 
 
Attendance of Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting:  

 Name of Committee 
Members 

Status / Category Designation No. of Meeting 
attended 

Mr. Rameshbhai R Patel Non-executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 4 

Mr. Sureshbhai N. Patel  Non-executive Independent 
Director 

Member 4 

Mr. Mehul B. Patel Non-executive Independent 
Director 

Member 4 

 
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
pursuant to Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178(5) of Companies Act, 
2013.  
Presently, the Stakeholders relationship committee comprises of Mr. Rameshbhai R. Patel as Chairman 
of the Committee and Mr. Sureshbhai N. Patel and Mr. Mehul B. Patel as Members of the Committee. 
 
They inter alia, approve issue of duplicate share certificates and oversee and review all matters 
connected with the securities transfers. The Committee also looks into redressal of shareholders’ 
grievances/ complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipts of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared 
dividends etc. The Committee overseas the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA) 
and recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services. 
The Company has designated the below cited e-mail ID of the Grievance Redressal Division/ 
Compliance Officer exclusively for the purpose of registering complaints by investors. E-mail ID –
popularestatemanagement@yahoo.co.in 

mailto:popularestatemanagement@yahoo.co.in
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None of the request for transfers, dematerialization and rematerialization has been received during 
the year; hence no request was pending for approval as on 31st March, 2024. 
 
Stakeholders’ relationship Committee Meetings: 
During the year under review, the Committee has conducted four meetings dated 29/05/2023, 
01/09/2023, 26/10/2023 and 31/01/2024. 
 
Attendance of Stakeholders relationship Committee Meeting: 
 

Name of Committee  
Members 

Category Status/ 
Designation 

No. of Meeting 
attended 

Mr. Rameshbhai R. Patel Non-executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 4 

Mr. Sureshbhai N. Patel  Non-executive Independent 
Director 

Member 4 

Mr. Mehul B. Patel Non-executive Independent 
Director 

Member 4 

 
Independent Directors’ Meeting: 
A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 29th May, 2023, inter alia, to discuss:  

1. Evaluation of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a 
whole, 

2. Evaluation of performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of 
the Executive and Non-Executive Directors and  

3. Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the 
Management and the Board and that is necessary to effectively and reasonably perform its 
duties.  

 
All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting. 
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INVESTORS COMPLAINT DETAILS: 
Quarter-wise Summary of Investors’ Complaints received and resolved to the satisfaction of the 
shareholders during the financial year 2023-24.  
 

Quarter Period Complaints 
pending at the 
beginning of 
the quarter 

Complaints 
received 

during the 
quarter 

Complaints 
disposed off 
during the 

quarter  

Complaints 
remaining 

unresolved at 
the end of the 

quarter 

From To 

01/04/2023 30/06/2023 0 0 0 0 

01/07/2023 30/09/2023 0 0 0 0 

01/10/2023 31/12/2023 0 0 0 0 

01/01/2024 31/03/2024 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 0 

Complaint pending at beginning of the year 0 

Complaint received during the year 0 

Complaint disposed off during the year 0 

Complaint remaining unresolved at the end 
of the year 

0 

 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
The Corporate Social Responsibility committee has been dissolved and discontinued as the Company is 
outside the purview of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. Therefore 
the company is not required to form committee or spend anything under CSR activities. 
 
Annual General Meetings: 
Location, Date and Time for last three Annual General Meetings were as follows: 

Year Venue of Annual General Meeting Date Time 

2020-21 81, 8th Floor, A-Wing, “New York Tower”, Thaltej 
Cross Road, Sarkhej Gandhinagar Highway, 
Ahmedabad-380054 

29/11/2021 11.30 a.m. 

2021-22 Held through Video Conferencing 
Deemed Venue: 81, 8th Floor, A-Wing, “New York 
Tower”, Thaltej Cross Road, Sarkhej Gandhinagar 
Highway, Ahmedabad-380054  

29/09/2022 11.30 a.m. 

2022-23 81, 8th Floor, A-Wing, “New York Tower”, Thaltej 
Cross Road, Sarkhej Gandhinagar Highway, 
Ahmedabad-380054 

29/09/2023 11.30 a.m. 

 
Disclosures: 
The company has entered into transaction with related part (ies) as per Accounting Standard 18 and 
the same has been disclosed by the statutory auditor in his report. However, they are in the ordinary 
course of business and on arm’s length basis.  
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Means of Communication: 
The Company regularly intimates quarterly un-audited as well as yearly audited financial results to the 
Stock Exchange, immediately after the same are taken on record by the Board. These results are 
normally published in “Free Press Gujarat” English daily and in “Lokmitra” Gujarati Daily News Paper 
and are also uploaded on company’s website https://www.popularestatemanagement.in/.  These are 
not sent individually to the Shareholders. 
 
General Shareholder Information: 
Thirtieth Annual General Meeting  
Date   :  16th day of September, 2024 
Time   :  11:30 a.m. 
Deemed Venue :  81, 8th Floor, A-Wing, “New York Tower”, Opp. Muktidham Derasar, 
                                           Thaltej, S. G. Highway, Ahmedabad-380054, Gujarat 
 
Financial Year / Calendar: 
The company follows April to March as its Financial Year. The results for every quarter beginning from 
April are being declared in the month following the quarter as per the LODR Regulations, 2015 
 
Date of Book Closure: 
The share transfer books shall be closed from Monday, 9th day of September, 2024 to Monday, 16th 
day of September, 2024 (both days inclusive). 
 
Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges at: 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai (BSE),  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai -400001 
  
Annual listing fees for the year 2024-25, as applicable, have been paid to the Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited. The Company has also paid Annual Custodial Fees for the year 2024-25, as applicable, to 
National Securities Depository Limited [NSDL] and Central Depository Services (India) Limited [CDSL]. 
 
REVOCATION OF SUSPENSION OF TRADING IN EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY: 
The company had also made an application for revocation of suspension of trading in equity shares of 
the company. 
 
Accordingly, the company has been granted in-principle approval for revocation of suspension in 
trading of securities of company on 29/03/2023 and the company has also received post approval for 
revocation of suspension in trading of equity shares of company on 21/06/2023 and the suspension of 
trading in equity shares was revoked and trading in shares was started w.e.f. 30/06/2023. 
 
Scrip Code: 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited           :     531870 
Demat ISIN Number in NSDL & CDSL for Equity Shares :     INE370C01015 
 
REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER AGENTS:                        LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

Address: 5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-
1) Besides Gala Business Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Centre,       
Off C.G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat.             

Phone: 079-26465179/5186/5187 
E-mail: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in 
Website: www.linkintime.co.in 

 

https://www.popularestatemanagement.in/
mailto:ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
http://www.linkintime.co.in/
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Share Transfer / Demat System: 
All the shares related work is being undertaken by our R & T Agent, Link Intime India Private Limited. 
To expedite the process of share transfer, transmission, split, consolidation, re-materialization and de-
materialization etc. of securities of the Company, the Board of Directors has delegated the power of 
approving the same to the Company’s R & T Agent under the supervision and control of the 
Compliance Officer Mrs. Sonali Panchal  till 4th January, 2024 and now under Mrs. Sonali Panchal, who 
is placing a summary statement of transfer/ transmission etc. of securities of the Company at the 
meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 
 
Share lodged for transfer at the R & T Agents address in physical form are normally processed and 
approved within 15 days from the date of its receipt, subject to the documents been valid and 
complete in all respect. Normally, the entire request for de- materialization of shares is processed and 
the confirmation is given to the Depository within 15 days. The investors / shareholders grievances are 
also taken-up by our R & T Agent. 
 
The Company has obtained and filed with the Stock Exchange(s), the half yearly certificates from a 
Company Secretary in Practice as required under Regulations 17 to 27 & part E of Schedule II of the 
Listing Regulations. 
 
De-materialization of Shares and Liquidity  
The Company’s Shares are in compulsory Demat segment and as on 31st March, 2024, 1,22,19,200 
Equity Shares of the Company forming 87.28% of the company’s paid - up Equity share capital is in 
dematerialized form. 
 
Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report: 
The Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report of the Company prepared in terms of SEBI Circular 
No. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-16/2002 dated December 31, 2002 reconciling the total shares held in both the 
depositories, viz NSDL and CDSL and in physical form with the total issued / paid-up capital of the 
Company were placed before the Board of Directors every quarter and also submitted to the Stock 
Exchange(s) every quarter. 
 
Outstanding GDR/DR/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments: Not applicable. 
  



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LTD    CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023287 

45 | P a g e                 30TH ANNUAL REPORT (2023-2024) 

 

Distribution Schedule and Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2024 
Distribution Schedule: 

No. of equity shares held No. of 
holders 

% of 
Total 

No. of  
shares 

% of 
Total 

1 - 500 1324 83.5331 153091 1.0935 

501 - 1000 122 7.6972 106196 0.7585 

1001 - 2000 50 3.1546 82785 0.5913 

2001 - 3000 20 1.2618 49759 0.3554 

3001 - 4000 11 0.6940 39700 0.2836 

4001 - 5000 8 0.5047 36781 0.2627 

5001 - 10000 8 0.5047 46725 0.3337 

10001 And Above 42 2.6498 13485163 96.3212 

Total 1585 100.00 14000200 100.00 

 
Shareholding Pattern: 

Sr. 
No. 

Category As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023 

Nos. of  
Shares 

held 

Voting  
Strength 

% 

Nos. of  
Shares 

held 

Voting  
Strength 

% 

1 Promoters 9354848 66.82 9354848 66.82 

2 Mutual Fund & UTI 0 0 0 0 

3 Bank, Financial Institutions (FI's), 
Insurance Companies 

0 0 0 0 

4 Foreign Institutional Investors 
(FII's) 

0 0 0 0 

5 Bodies Corporate 2292333 16.3736 2292316 16.3735 

6 Indian Public and HUF 2353019 16.8071 2353036 16.8072 

7 Clearing Member 0 0 0 0 

Total 14000200 100.00 14000200 100.00 

 
Address for correspondence 

a) Investor Correspondence for 
transfer / de-materialization 
of shares and any other 
query relating to the shares 
of the Company. 

Link Intime India Private Limited 
5th Floor, 506-508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1) 
Besides Gala Business Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College 
Centre, Off C.G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-
380009, Gujarat.   
Tel : 079-26465179/5186/5187 
E-mail: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in  

b) Any other query and Annual 
Report  

Secretarial Department  
81, 8th Floor, A-Wing, “New York Tower”,  
Thaltej Cross Road, Sarkhej Gandhinagar Highway,  
Ahmedabad-380054 
Tel : 079-26858881  Fax : 079-26854831 
E-mail: popularestatemanagement@yahoo.co.in 

mailto:ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
popularestatemanagement@yahoo.co.in
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Compliance by the Company: 
The company has mostly complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing regulations and 
guidelines of SEBI. 
The company had made an application for revocation of suspension of trading in equity shares of the 
company. 
 
Accordingly, the company has been granted in-principle approval for revocation of suspension in 
trading of securities of company on 29/03/2023 and the company has also received post approval for 
revocation of suspension in trading of equity shares of company on 21/06/2023 and the suspension of 
trading in equity shares was revoked and trading in shares was started w.e.f. 30/06/2023. 
 

Regd. Office:                      By Order of the Board  
81, 8th Floor, A-Wing,                        For, Popular Estate Management Limited 
“New York Tower”, Opp. Muktidham Derasar,  
Thaltej, S. G. Highway, Ahmedabad-380054 
                                                           Sd/-                    Sd/- 
             Vikram Chhaganlal Patel            Het D Patel 

                              Director, CFO & Manager             Director 
                DIN: 00166707                       DIN: 06986909 
Date: 24/08/2024  

 
 

  

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION 
To, 
The Board of Directors 
Popular Estate Management Limited 
 
Re: Certificate in compliance with Regulation 17[8] of SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements] Regulations, 2015 [Listing Regulations] 
 
Dear Sirs,  
 
In compliance with Regulation 17[8] of the Listing Regulations read with schedule II of part B of the 
Listing Regulations, I, Vikram C Patel, CFO of the Company M/s. Popular Estate Management Limited, 
hereby certify that for the financial year ending 31st March, 2024. 
 
(a) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement and the Directors’ report for the 
year and that to the best of my knowledge and belief:  

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading;  

(ii) These statements together present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

(b) There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics 
policy.  
(c) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 
that I have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and I have 
disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such 
internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps taken or proposed to take to rectify 
these deficiencies.  
(d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that;  

(i)   there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year,  
(ii) there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and  
(iii) there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
Place: Ahmedabad       
Date: 24/08/2024       
            Sd/- 
                          VIKRAM C PATEL 
                          DIRECTOR, MANAGER & CFO 
                          PAN: AGUPP0288P 
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 RONAK DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 

PHONE: 079-40026633 M: +91-9033009739 EMAIL: csronakdoshi@yahoo.com 
802, Mahakant Complex, Opp. V.S. Hospital, Ellis Bridge, Ahmedabad-380006 

=================================================================================== 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
To, 
The Members of Board 
POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
81, 8th Floor, "A" wing, New York Tower,  
Opp. Muktidham Derasar, Thaltej,  
S. G. Highway, Ahmedabad - 380054, Gujarat. 

 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED having CIN: 
L65910GJ1994PLC023287 and having registered office at 81, 8th Floor, "A" wing, New York 
Tower, Opp. Muktidham Derasar, Thaltej, S. G. Highway Ahmedabad  (hereinafter referred to 
as ‘the Company’), produced before me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications 
(including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as 
considered necessary and explanations furnished to  us by the Company & its officers, We 
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the financial year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continue as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.  
 
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 

in Company 
1.  Vikram Chhaganlal Patel 00166707 25/01/2021 

2.  Het Dashrathbhai Patel 06986909 29/07/2021 

3.  Saritaben Natwarbhai Patel 07074237 21/01/2015 

4.  Sureshbhai Natverlal Patel 00481889 31/03/2006 

5.  Rameshbhai Revabhai Patel 07074253 21/01/2015 

6.  Mehul B Patel 09208938 29/06/2021 

 
 

mailto:csronakdoshi@yahoo.com
http://www.mca.gov.in/
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is 
the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these, based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to 
the future viability of the company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the company. 
 
 
Place: Ahmedabad                   For, Ronak Doshi & Associates 
Date: 24/08/2024        Practicing Company Secretary 
UDIN: A023712F001006980 
 
                             Sd/- 
                 Ronak D Doshi 
                 Proprietor 
                             Membership No. 23712 
                  C. P. No. 12725 
          PRC No.: 1698/2022 
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 RONAK DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 

PHONE: 079-40026633 M: +91-9033009739 EMAIL: csronakdoshi@yahoo.com 
802, Mahakant Complex, Opp. V.S. Hospital, Ellis Bridge, Ahmedabad-380006 

=================================================================================== 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

To, 
The Members of Board 
POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
81, 8th Floor, "A" wing, New York Tower,  
Opp. Muktidham Derasar, Thaltej,  
S. G. Highway, Ahmedabad - 380054, Gujarat. 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Popular Estate 
Management Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31st March, 2024 as stipulated in SEBI 
[Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015, as amended (erstwhile Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreement).  
 
The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to the review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
said clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
Company.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
based on the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the 
Company has mostly complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
Regulations 17 to 27 & Part E of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations.  
 
We state that in respect of the investor grievances during the year ended March 31, 2024, no such 
investor grievances were received during the year and hence not remained unattended/pending for 
more than 30 days.  
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company. 
 
MATTERS OF EMPHASIS: 
As informed to us by the management of the company, they had made an application for revocation 
of suspension of trading in equity shares of the company. 
 
Accordingly, the company has been granted in-principle approval for revocation of suspension in 
trading of securities of company on 29/03/2023 and the company has also received post approval for 
revocation of suspension in trading of equity shares of company on 21/06/2023 and the suspension of 
trading in equity shares was revoked and trading in shares was started w.e.f. 30/06/2023. 
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Place: Ahmedabad                For, Ronak Doshi & Associates 
Date:  24/08/2024                        Practicing Company Secretaries 
UDIN: A023712F001007057 
 
                             Sd/- 
                 Ronak D Doshi 
                 Proprietor 
                              Membership No. 23712 
                 C. P. No. 12725 
         PRC No.: 1698/2022 
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H.S.JANI 
Hersh Samlr Janl 

/; B com. Ll.B. FCA. DJS.A (I.CAL) 

ASSOCIATES 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members of POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opi nion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Popular Estate 
Managem ent Limited (~the CompanyW), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 
31,2024, the Statement of Profit and l oss (Including Other ComprehenSive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements including ill summary of significant accounting 
poliCies and other explanatory Information (referred as "financial statements~ 

hereinafter). 

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") In the manner so required and give a true and fairview in conformity 
with the Incllan Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amen6cd ("Ind-AS"), 
and other accounting principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affairs 
(financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2024, Its profit (financial performance 
including other comprehensive Income), changes In equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

83515 for OpiniOn 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements In accordance with the Standards on 
Audi ting spe<:if led under section 143(10) of the Act ("SAs"). Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described In the section " Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements" of our report. We are Independent of the Company In 
accordance with the Code of Ethics Issued by the Inst itute of Chartered Accountants of 
India ( ICAI) together With the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made t hereunder, anll 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI 's Code of Ethics. we believe that the audit evidence obtained by us Is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Kev Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most 
significance In our audit of the finandal statements of the current period. We have 
determined t hat there are no key audit matters to communicate In our report. /.~ ' ' s$ ,. 

, M~O ", 
• I 10 .. : '. , 

' .. -4.'; 

701, 702. 708, Sakar V, 8/h. Natraj Cinema, Ashram Road, Ahmedilbad - 380 009. Gujarat (INDIA) 
T.Fax: +91-79-2658 3708 M: +91-98254 57510 E: hershjanl@)yahoo.coJn 



, 
Information Other than the Financial Statements & Aud itor's Report thereon 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other 
information. The other Informiltlon comprises the Information Included In the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board'S R.eport Including annexure thereof and Corporate 
Governance Including annexures which shall form part of Annual R.eport of the company 
but does not Include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The said 
reports are expected to be made avallaole to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection With our audit of the financial statements, our responsloility Is to read the 
other information Identified abo ... e and, In dOing so, consider whether the other Information 
Is matenally Inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the said reports, If we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged With governance as 
reQuired under SA 720 'The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information'. 

Management's Responsibility for t he Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responSible for the matters stated 
In section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 
that gl ... e a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (Including 
other comprehensive Income), changes In equity and cash flows of the Company In 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally 
accepted In India . This responsibility also Includes maintenance of adequate accounting 

" records In accordance With the proVIsions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularities; selection and 
applicatIOn of appropriate accounting pohcles; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for enSUring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, rele ... ant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclOSing, as applicable, matters related 
to gOing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either Intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Stat ements 

Our objectl ... es are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level 
of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance With SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraUd 
or error and are considered material If, Individually or In the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to innuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 
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AS part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. we also: 

IClentlfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsIve to those 

risks, and obtaIn audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve COllusion, forgery, 
Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of ,nternal financial control relevant to the audit In order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate Internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management and Board of 
Directors. 

Conclude on the approp(lateness of management's and Board of Directors' use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty eXists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related diSClosures in the financial statements or, If such disclosures are 
Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor 's report . However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a goIng concern. 

Evaluate the overa!! presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
Including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlYing transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements In the financIal statements that, Individually 
or In aggregate, makes It probable that the economic decisions or a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the finanCial statements may be Influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (I) planning the scope of our audll work 
and in evaluatmg the results of our work; and (iI) to evaluate the effect of any Identified 
misstatements in the finanCial statements. 

We communicate With those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and signiFICant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in Internal control that we Identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance With a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding IOdependence, and to communicate With 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
Independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most sIgnificance In the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters In our 
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes publIc disclosure about the matter or 
when, In extremely rare Circumstances, we determine that a malter should not be 



communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so woui<l 
reasonably be expected to outweIgh the public Interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other l.egal and Regulatory Requirements 

1 As requIred by the CompanIes (Auchtor's Report) Order, 2020 (~the Order"), Issued by 
lile Central Gcvemment of IndIa in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 
we gIve In the Annexure-A, a slatement on the matters specified In paragrllphs 3 and 
4 of the Order, to the extent appll(able 

2. As reqUIred by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtaIned all the information and explanatIons which to the 
best Of our knowledge and behef were necessary for the purposes of our audIt. 

b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as It appears from our e)(amlnation of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other 
comprehensive Income), the statement of changes In equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flows dealt WIth by thIS Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opInion, the aforesaid finandal statements comply with all the Indian 
Accounting Standards speCIfied under Section I33 of the Act. 

e) On the baSIS of the wntten representatlons received from the directors as on March 
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is 
dISQualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a dIrector in terms of 
SectIon 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate report in " AnnelCure B~. Our report elCpresses an unmodIfied 
oplnlon on the adequacy and operatIng effectiveness of the Company's internal 
finanCIal controls over finanCIal reporting 

g) With respect to the matter to be Induded in the Auchtor's Report In accordance 
WIth the reqUIrements of section 197(16) orthe Act, as amended: 

In our opInion and according to the information and @lCplanations gIven to us, the 
r@muneratlon paId by the Company to Its directors during the current year is in 
accordance WIth the provISIons of SectIon 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid 
to any director Is not in excess of the Umlt laid down under Section 197 of the Act. 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 
197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us, 

h) With respect to the other matters to be inclucled in the Auditor's Report In 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended In our opinIon and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanatIons given to us: 

i. The COmpany has dlsdosed the Impact of pending litigations on Its financial 
position In its financial statements - refer note 32. 

II. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any matenal foreseeable losses. 

~~ 



III. There has been no delay In transfemnQ amounts, required to be transferred, 
to lhe InveStor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

Iv. Reporting In respect of follOWing: 

a. The Company's Management and the Board of Directors have 
represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
to or In any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Intermechanes"), With the understanding, whether recorded In writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or Indirectly 
lend or Invest In other persons or entities identified In any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Benertclanes·) 
or prOVide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficianes, 

b. The Company'S Management and the Board of Directors have 
represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, Including 
foreign entity ("Funding Parties·), with the understanding, whether 
recorded In Writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or Invest In other persons or entltles Identlned 
In any manner whatsoever by or On behalf of the Funding Party 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries·) or provide any guarantee, setuflty or the hke 
On behalf of the Ultimate Benenclanes; and, 

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 
and appropnate In the Circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 
that has caused us to oelleve that the representations under sub-clause 
(il and (II) of Rule Ute) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 
any matenal mISstatement. 

v. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company IS in 
comphance With sectiOn 123 of the Compames Act, 2013, 

VI. Reporting under Rule 11(g) of CompaOles (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
IS applicable from I" Apnl, 2023: 

Based on our examinatiOn which Included test checks, the company h'\'l used 
accounting softwares for maintaining Its books of account, wtllch have a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded In the respective 
software. We did not come across any Instance or the audit trail feature being 
tampered with. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 28/05/2024 

For H.S.Janl & Associates, 
1;P'!i~,~Chartered Accountants, 
~ ~ .. RoN: 127515W 

M No ~ ,. 

12410" f) ~. 

~ . ' ~ ~~ ~alllir Janl 

Partner 
Mem. No.: 124104 
UDIN: 24124104BKOCOl342 
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!-I.S.JANI 
Hersh Samlr Janl 
B com II B I=CA. O.l.SA (l.eAI) 

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ' Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Based on the aud!t procedures performed 0'1' us for the purpose of reportmg a true and 
fair view on the finanCla! statements of the Company and taking into consideration the 
Information and explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of account 
and other records examined by us In the normal course of audit and to the best of our 
knowledge and behef, we state that: 

1. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and EqUIpment, Right-or-Use Assets and 
Intangible Assets: 

a. (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars induding 
quantitative details and Situation of Its Property, Plant &. Equipment and relevant 
details of rlght-of-use assets. 

(8) The company has malntamed proper records showing full particulars of Intangible 
assets. 

b. The Property, Plant &. EqUipment and Rlght-ot-Use Assets have been physically verified 
by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. 

c. The title deeds of fOllowlOg immovable properties (other than properties where the 
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed In favour of the 
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements under the head · Property, Plant & 
Equipment ~, are not held 10 the name of the Company: 

Whether 
Gross promotor, Reaso" for "ot 

Description Carryl"g Held in name 
director Period being held In 

Value Or their 0' of property (Rs. In 0' relative holding 
name of 

Lakhs) 0' company 

employee 
-

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

~~A$S • 'Ii-
• ~~o ~2. O.t • • .,d ' . . 
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d. The company has not revalued Its Property, Plant & Equipment (Including right-of-use 

allsctll) O~ Intangible a$$et$ O~ both during the year. 

e. There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding any 
benaml property under the Prohibition of 8~!naml Property Transaction Act, 1988 and 
rules made thereunder. 

2. In respect or the Company's Inventory: 

I. Physical venflcallon of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management and no material discrepancies were noticed. In our opinion, the coverage 
and procedure of such venflCltlon by the m.!o.!Igement IS appropriate. 

b. DUring the year, the company has not been sanctioned worl(lng capital limits In excess 
of five crore rupees, In aggregate, from the banks or financial Institutions on the basis 
of secunty of current assets. Hence reporting under this clause Is not applicable for the 
year under report. 

3. During the year, the company has not made Investments In, prOVided any guarantee or 
secunty or granted any loans or advances In the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, 
to companies, firms, Limited Uabillty Partnerships or any other parties. Hence reporting 
under this clause Is not applicable to the company for the year under report. 

'I. The company has not given any loans, or prOVided any guarantee or security as specified 
under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Hence reporting under this clause Is not applicable 
to the company for the year under report. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public Within the meaning of the 
... directives Issued by the Reserve Bank of India, prOVisions of sectiOn 73 to 76 of the Act, 

or Iny other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder. Hence reporting 
under this clause is not applicable to the company for the year under report. 

6. Maintenance of cost records has not been SpeCIfied by the Central Government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Act. Hence reportIOg under this clause is not applicable 
to the company for the year under report. 

7. In respect of statutory dues payable bV the company: 

a. The company has generally been regular in deposltmg undisputed statutory dues 
Including provident fund, employee's state Insurlnce, Income-tax, sales tax, service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and 
anv other statutory dues to the appropriate authOrities. Further, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstandIOg at the yearend for a period of 
more than SIX months from the date they became payable 

o. 
10. : . ,.' 
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b. Dues of Income tax which has not been deposited as at March 31, 2024 on account of 
dispute Is given below. There is no funher pending dispute on the part of company 
except stated below: 

Amount 
Nature 

Period to Involved Amount 
Name of 

of the 
Forum where which the unpaid 

the statue dispute is pending 
Dues amount (Rs.) 

relates (Rs. ) 

FY 2007-08 2,27,84,130 2,27,84,130 
GUJarat High Court, FY 2008-09 3,87,27,804 3,87,27,804 
Ahmedabad 

Income Tax Demand FY 2011-12 7,82,13,780 7,82,13,780 

Act, 1961& for Tax 

related rules 
Commissioner of FY 2010- 11 2,15,44,640 2,15,44,640 
Income-tax 
{Appeals)-9, Income 
Tax Department, FY 2014· 15 5,90,94,570 5,90,94,570 
Ahmedabad 

Wealth Tax 
Commissioner of 

Aa & 
Demand Wealth-Tax 

FY 2011-12 13,04,242 13,04,242 
related rules 

for Tax (Appeal), 
Ahmedabad . 

The above table IS according to the information available alld provided by the company to 
us. We were not able to find out correct Information due to lack of cooperation by the 
comp.lny. 

8. Tra nsactions re lating to preViously unrecOf"ded Income that have been surreoclered or 
d lsoosed as Income dunng the year· 

During the year ended March 31, 2024; search operations were carried out by Income Tax 
depanment at the registered offICe alld branch offices of the company during the period 
from July II, 2023 to July 16 2023. The Prohibitory Order was effective at certain pan of 
premiSes till September 5 2023. Dunng the searCh proceedings, the Income Tax 
department has Identified certain unrecorded transactions In respect of charges for Job­
work services, jewellery making charges as welt as the excess stock physically foulld as 
compared to stock recorded in books of accounl. The company has surrendered the said 
unrecorded transactions as ·undlsclosed income~ and shall pay Income-tax thereon In the 
tax assessments of the relevant financial years. 

Currently legal proceedings for this matter are under-going. The company Is In process of 
fiUng responses I statements for the information asked by Income Tax Officials In this 
regard. Pending the completion of respectIVe assessment, It Is not possible for 
management the volume I amount of such transactions and related tax liability. 

9. Reporting In respect of following: 

a. The company has not defaulted In repayment of loans or other borrOWings or In t he 
payment of Interest thereon to any lender. 

b . The company has not declared as a Willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution 
or other lender. 

..,, ~ASS , -. 
• M~ • . -
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C. The Company has not taken any term loans dUring the year and there are no 

ou""n''"9 term loans it the Iit9mning or the year and hence, reoorting under this 
d'I,JI;;e is not applicable to the company for the year under report. 

d. funds raised on short·term baSIS have, prima faCie, not been used dunng the year for 
kmgte,m purpcY.A!S by the Company. 

e. The company does not have subsidlanes, associates or JOint ventlm!s and hence 
reporting under thiS clause IS not applicable to the company fOf" the year under report. 

f. The company does not have subsldlanes, associates or Joint ventures and hence 
reporting under thiS clause IS not applicable to the company for the year under report. 

10. Dunng the Current year, the company has neither raised money by way of initial publiC 
offer or further public offer (Including debt: Instruments) nor made any preferential 
allotment or prtvate placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or 
optionally convertible). Hence reporting under thl5 clause IS not apphcable to the company 
for the year under report 

11.ln respect of reporting of fraud or whistle blower mechanism: 

a. No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

b. No report under sub-section ( 12) of section 143 of the Act has been "Ied by the 
auditors In Form ADT-4 as prescnbed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this 
repolt. 

c. No whistle blower complaints were re(elVed by the Company during the year. 

12. Company is not a Nidhl Company hence reportmg under thiS clause Is not appliCable to 
the company for the year uncler report. 

1). In our opinion and according to mI· Information and e)(planatlons given to us, the Company 
IS In compl'dnce With SectiOns 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, tn respect of all 
tran~ctlollS With the related parties an.d the details of related party transactIOns have 
been dISClosed In the flnanoal statements as required by the apphcable Indian Accounttn9 
Standards. 

14. ln respect of Internal audit system: 

a. The Company has an tnternal audit system commensurate with the sIze and nature of 
Its business 

b . We have conSidered the Internal audit reports of the Company Issued tHi date for the 
period under audit. 

IS. l n our opinion, the Company has not entered In[o any non-cash transactions with Its 
directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provISions of SectIon 192 of the 
Act are not applicable to the Company. AccordIngly, reporting under thiS clause Is not 
applicable to the company for the year under report 

16. Reporting in respect or follOwing: 

a. The Company IS not requIred to be regIstered un.der Section 4S -IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Hence reporting under thiS dause Is not applicable to the company 
'Of" the year under report ... \ ~ ASS 

~ , 
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b. The company has not conducted any Non-Banking or Housing Financial activities with 
or without any Valid Certificate of RegIstration (CoR) from the RBI as per the RBI Act, 
\93<'1 Hance reportmg undel this clause IS not applicable to the company for the year 
tJt\d~ report. 

c. The COmpany IS not a Core Investment Company (Cle) as defined In the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence reportJOg under thiS clause IS not applicable 
to the company for the year under report. 

d. The Group does oot have any Cle. Therefore, the requirements of clause 3(lCvi)(d) are 
not applicable. Hence reportIng under thiS clause IS not applICable to the company for 
It year lder report_ 

17. The company has not incurred cash losses 11"1 the f inanCial year and In the immediatelv 
prece<:ll1"lg flnanoal year. 

18. There has been no reSignation of the statutory auditors dunng the year hence reportl1"lg 
unCler th clauS(' is not applicable to the company for the year under report. 

19. The finanCial ratiOS, ageing and elCpected dates of reall~ation of financial assets and 
payment of fmanclal liabilities, other Information accompanying the financial statements, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 
elCamlnatlon of the evidence supportIng the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty elClsts as on the date 
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting Its lIablhtles elClsting at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that thiS is not an assurance as to the future 
Viability of the Company. We flJrther state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities failing due Within a penod of one year from the balance sheet date, Will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

20. Reporting In re<speet of Corporate SOCIal Responsibility (CSR) u/s. 135: 

a. There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Sooal ResponSIbility (CSR) on other 
than ongO'"9 projects reqUlnng a transfer to a fund Specified In Schedule VII to the 
Act In compliance With sa:ond prOVISO to sub'sectlon (5) of SectIOn 135 of the said Act. 
Hence f1 porting under clause IS not applicable 10 the Company for the year under repa' 

b III our opinIOn, there are- no ongOIng projects towards Corporate Social RespanSlbU,tv 
(CSR) requinng a transhO ( 10 !.j.K.'Oal account In COmpliance With the prOVISion of sub­
Sf>C\lon (b) of section 135 of the said Act. Henc.e l epolting under thiS dause Is not 
.lppilcable to the company for the year und,., rprort 

21. Requirements of preparing & Issuing of consolidated financial statements are not 
applicable to the company and hence reporting under this clause Is not applicable to the 
company for the year under report. 

r't.rf'· "hm~I.,I" .. 1 
f')~t,. 28/0~/lO"'!j 

for H.S .Jani 80 Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, 

.~\ ~ ASf RN : 127515W 

,,' M.No. '. l!!:!::' 
• 12 4104 • 7 
\. . ersh Sam ir Jani 

• roprlelln 
Mem. No.: 124104 
UUIN ' 24174 I048KCJCOIJ4i 



ANNEXURE " 8" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ' Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause 
(I) of Sub·section 3 of Section 143 of the Act) 

Opinion 

We have audited the Internal flnaneal controls oyer finanoal reporting of Popular Estate 
Management limited (~the Company· ) 115 of March 31, 2024 In conjunction With our 
audit of the financial stlttements of the Company for the year ended on that dllte. 

In our opinion, to the best of our Information and according to the eKpianations given to 
us, the Company has, In aU material respects, In adequate Internal financial controls 
system over finandal reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for Internal financial 
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential 
components of Internal control stated In the Guidance Note on AudIt of Internal Flnltndal 
Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management Is responSible for establishing lind mllintalning Internal 
finllnaal controls based on the intemal control over flnandal reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of Intemlll control stated In the 
GUidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by 
tttl!! InstItute of Chartered Accountants of IndIa. These I"6ponslbllltles Indude the design, 
Impiementatlon and maintenance of adequllte Internal finendal controls that were 
operating effectlyely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of Its business, including 
adherence to respective company's poncies, the safeguarding of Its assets, the preyentlon 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financiallnformatJon, as n!Qulred undef' the 
Aa. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibIlity Is to eKpress an opinion on the COmpany's Internal finandal controls 
oyer flnanOlL1 reporting of the Company and Its joint operations companies Incorporated 
In India (retain as applicable) based on our audit. We conducted our audit In IIc:.cordance 
WIth the Guidance Note on AudIt of Internal flOancla! Controls Over Financial fteportlng 
(the "Guidance Note") Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lI'Idlll lind the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) or tl\e Act, to the e~tent 
applicable to an audit of Internal flnandal controls, Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require thllt we comply with ethical requirements lind pilln lind perform the lIudit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internlll financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and rntIlntalned and if such controls operated effectlvelv 
In all material respects. 

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audIt evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal finanCial controls system over flnandal reporting and their operatlOg 
effectiveness. Our audIt of internal flnandal controls over financial reporting Induded 
obtaining an understanding of Internal financial controls over flnllndal reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness eKlsts, and testing and evaluating the design and 

, ., 
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operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The pl'"ocedures 
~Iected depend on the lIoud,tors judgement, lndudlng the assessment of the risks of 
matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We beUeve that the audit evidence we have obtained IS sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our lIoudit opinion on the Comp.any's intemlli finllncilll controls system 
over financia l reporting. 

Meaning of 'nternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's intemai finanoal control over financial reportin.g Is a process designed to 
pfOVide reasonable assurance regarding the rellabtlity of finanoal reporting and the 
preparation of finanCial statements for external PUI'llOS8S in accordance With generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal finanCial control over finanCial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
re<ords that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the t",nsactlons and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurllonce that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of finandal statements In 
accordance with generally accepted accountmg prinCiples, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only In accordance With authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
t'"e9ardlng prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the flnanclal statements. 

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Control, Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the Inherent limitations of Internal finllncial controlS over flnanclal reporting, 
Indudlng the posSIbility of collusion or Improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or f",ud may occur lind not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the Internal finanCial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the Internal finanCIal control over nnllondal reporting may 
become Inadequate because of changes In conditionS, or that the degree of compliance 
With the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 28/05/2023 

For H.S.Janl • A"ocl"tes, 
Chartered Accountants, 

1;!i~~FRN : 127515W ,'!" ~sJ 

~".. . 
, M.No. ~ . 
• 124104 • :/" 

~[l!:':P'.~ rsh amlr Janl 
.... Propnetor 

Mem. No. : 12410<1 
UDIN : 24124104BI<OC01342 
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POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

ParticularS 

Non·curren! assets 

(a) Property, plant and eQ(.lIpmel'lt 
(b) In tangible Assets 

(e) Final'leial assets 

(i) Investments 
{ii) Others 

Id) Oeferred Tax Assets 
Total non · current assets 

Current assets 

la) Inventories 

(bl Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 

Iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
liil) Other financial assets 

(d) Other curren! asse ts 
Total current asseu 

EQUITY AND lIASl liTiES 

Equity 

la) Equi ty share capital 
Ib) Other equity 
loul equity 

liABilITIES 

Non·current liabllltles 
(a) Fmancialliabilitlf!'S 

IiI Borrowings 
Total non - current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
(a) Financial habillties 

Ii) Trade payables 
(n) Other finandalliabilities 

tb) Olh~r current liabili ties 
Total current li abilities 

ul Ii 

In tern,s of our report of even da te. 

For, H. S. Jani & Associates, 
Chartered Accountan ts 
(Firm Regd. No. 127S1SW) 

S. J~ni 

Proprietor 
(M No 12410<1) 

Place' AhmPdabad 

S 
6 

, 
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U 

14 

15 

16 

17 

" " 
For & ,f ?M.", .. m"'u~ 
Het D. I Urvi Mee t Shah 

v; 

Comfl~ny Secretary 

ACS 
Mem No: 73067 

Direct r.Chlef Financial Officer & MIIn~g('r 
(DI N: (0166707) 

Place: Ahmedabad 



POPUlAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED • 

s tatement 0 f p f' ro It an d h Loss or t e year ended March 31 2024 '000 
'. 

Particulars 
Note Year Ended Year Ended 
No, March 31, 2024 Marth 11, 2023 , Revenue from operations · 

" Other income 20 0 

'" Total Income (I + III 0 

'" EXPENSES 

I-I Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade 
Zl and work-In-progress · 

Ibl Emplovee benefit e~pense 22 1,216 1,166 

1<1 Finaflce costs 13 · '08 
1'1 DepreClillion and amortisation expense " 1,827 2,622 

1.1 Other I!Mpenses 15 3,761 4,978 
TOlalexpenses 6,804 8,915 

V Profil/(Ioss) before I ~X (III. IV) (6,804) (8,975) 

"' TiJlt expense 

(1) Currenl tax 16 · 
(2) Deferred lax 16 

Total tax expense · 

V" Profit/(Ion) for the period (V-VI) (6,804) (8,97S) 

VIII Other comprehensive Intorne 
(i) Items tha I Will nOl be reclassified 10 profit or loss · 
(ill Item~ that may be recia§s1fied to profit or loss · · 

" Total comprehensive income for the period (VlI+VIII) 6,804) 8,975 

X 
Basic & diluted earnlnls per share of filce value of Rs.I0 

eilch fully pilid up 

11) BaSIC '0 (0.49) (0.64) 
(21 Oiluted '0 (0.49) (0.64) 

In terms 01 our report of even date. For & on behalf of the board of 
For, H. 5. Ja nl & Associates, Popular Estate Manalement Limited 

Chartered AccountantS 

(Firm Regd. NO.127515W) / J# 
. ~"~ 

Het D. P I Urvl Meet 5hi11h ,- Director Company Secretary 
'" M.No. ~ ·,.,12410'/ (DIN' 06 609) XCS 

-' j ~ " 
Mem No : 73067 

0-

Hersh S. Jani Vlkram C. Patel 

Proprietor Director,Chief Financ ial Officer & Manager 

1M. No. 124104) (DIN; 00166701) 

Place; Ahmedabad Place; Ahmedabad 

Date : 28/05/2024 Date' 28/05/2024 



POPULAR eSTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

Cash &:(ow Statement for the ylH,r ended March 31, 2024 

"000 

Partkulal'1 VearEnded Year Ended 
March 31, 2024 Milrch31,2021 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before ta~ (6,804) (8,975) 

Adjustments for: 
DeprecIatIon and amortJ~atlon e~pense 1,827 2,622 
Finance costs · 108 
Gam on sale of fixed assets 
Interest Income · 
Operating profit before working capital changes (4,977) (6,144) 

Changes in operating assets and liabili t ies: 
{1"Cfeasel/Decrease in trade receivables · . 
(Increase)/Oecrease In other current assets SO {74} 
Increase/IOecrease) In trade payable 1.118 83S 
Increase/IOecrease) In other currertt financialliabllihes · (13) 
Incruse/tDecrease) In other current lIabUities · 
Cash flow generated from operations 13,809) (5,397) 

Direct laxes paid (nel) . 
NET CASH FLOW FROM I (USED IN) OPERATING 13,809) 15,3971 

• ACTIVITIES (A) 

Cash flows from invesling activities 

Purchase of properly, plant and equlpmenlS 

Sale of proparty, plant and equlpments · 3,359 
Purchase of Illtallgible assets 
NET CASH FLOW FROM I (USED IN) IN INVESTING · 3,359 
ACTIVITIES (8) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Finance costs paid · (208) 
Repayment of borrowlnBS · 
Proceeds from additIonal borrowIngs obtained 3,790 2,367 

NET CASH FLOW FROM I (USED IN) fiNANCING 3,790 2,1S9 

ACTIVITIES (e) 

Part iculars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 202. March 31, 2023 

NET INCREASED I (DECREASED) IN CASH AND CASH 
(19) 111 

EQUIVALENTS fA + 8 + C) 
Cash and cash eqUivalents at the beginiling of Ihe year IS4 33 

Cash ilnd cash equivalents at the end of the year US '" 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

t:as:h Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, Z024 

Nol~)~ 
(i) . The above ca§h flow §tatement ha§ been prepared under the "Indirect Method" a§ §et out In the Indian 
Accounting Standard - 7 Ca§h Flow Statements specified under Sealon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
wIth Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

{iiI. Previous Period's I Year's figureS have been re-grouped I Re·Oassifled where necessary to make it 
comparable with the current period. 

In terms of our repor! of even date . For & on behalf of the board of 
For. H. S. Janl & Associates, Popular Enate Management Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

~ ~ (Firm Regd. No. 12751SW) 

... \ ' ASS 

H"O"~! 
Urvl Meet Shah 

\ '" . " "\', Director Company Secretary K -'if' M.No. ~ (DIN 06 ) ACS 
-" 12"'O~!i 

V;k~ c. ""," 

Mem No: 73067 .. 
Hersh S. Jan l 

Proprietor Director.Chief Financial Officer & Manager 

(M. No. 124104) (DIN; 00166707) 

Place . Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad 

0", 28/05/2024 Date . 28/05/2024 



POPUlAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended on March 31, 2024 

Equily Share Capita l 

PartIculars 

Balance as 0f1 April 1, 2022 
Additions during the yeilr 
Balance as on March ll, 2023 

Changes dUring the vea' 
Balance as Oll March 31, 2024 

Other Equity 

Part itu la rs 

Balance a s at March 31, 2022 
Loss for the Yeilr 
Other comprehenSive Income I" 
the year (net of TaK) 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

LOSS for the year 
Othef comprehensive income I" 
the year (net of TaKI 
Balance as ill Milrch 31,2024 

In terms of OUf report of even dall!. 
for, H. S. Jan i & Associates, 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Regd. No. 121SI5W) 

Hersh S. Janl 

Proprietor 
(M. No. 124104) 

Place· Ahmedabad 
Date ' 28/05/2024 

Nole 
N,. Am. '"' 

" 140,002,000 
Ni! 

" 140,002,000 

Nil 

" 140,002,000 

Other E ul 
Retained Earnln 5 

Nole No. 
Profit and 

Other Genera l 

Loss 
Comprehenslv Reserve 

e tncome 

15 302,876.4 " - 715,000 
(8,974,6 24) - -

- - -

15 293,901.818 - 715,000 

(6,803,6 79) 

15 287,098,139 - 715,000 

FOf & on behalf of the board of 

~M,", •• m,"'um"'d~ 

He! D. Pat" Urvl Meet Shah 
Director Company Secretary 

(DI N' 069 I,,' ACS 
~. . Mem No; 73067 

VI~ c. "", 
Dlrector,Chlef Financial Officer & Milnager 
(DIN; 00166707) 

Place, Ahmedabad 
Date: 28/05/2024 

Total 

303,591,442 
(8.974,624) 

-

294,616,818 

(6.803,679) 

287,813,139 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT lIMlTEO 

Note' to financial statement 10( the yt.rended M.rdll1, 2024 

Popul •• Est.te M .... cement Um'ted [ON' l6S'IOGJI994PlC02)287) (referred.s -u.., Com~ny" in these fIn.ono;'" 
It'I_,S) was Incorpor.tf(\ on Octobtf \<I •• 19904, IWVlrc rtG'~ttrcd office <tt Mmed.l~, G~rll! .. I"""". TM 
Company's OJ)erItionl prlMlomll14mtly ,dilflo loconltf'l.l(t1O!'l & dtYfIopmtnl oi bulld,np.nd iflfmltuCturt 

The cemplny III h!led public tomplny on Bomo.y Stock E>u:hlnce VIele Knpt code: 531810 

Thfte fillMlCilollllttmentS I.t.pproved fof ,1SUe by the Com~ny's 8oIrdoi OI.fCtOl"J on 27/f1Sf2024 

2. Stillement 01 cO<npllallCe: 

nws. l,nafltl3l St3Ieme<11S comPfU'rc 01 ~Ianc:e ShHI as .1 March 31. 2024, Slltement of Prof"tI and lJ)sS, 
Stll_t of o..."IleS In Equily and SlillO!tI>enI of cast. FIowoi for the vu, III\ded M.rdI 31. 2023; hio~e bHI'I 

prepared In a«O(d~nc:e w'th Inchan Account,,,, Sta1lOlrtk rind ~') It preKr,be<I undfr SteIlOn III of the 
Companoes At!, 2013 read W1lh Rule] 01 thl! Compln'es (Ind'an AccOUnl'''I Stilndil.ds) Ru!fi.1015.nd Compan,es 
(Iridian AccOUfltinc St~nd.Jrds) AlTIfIldme'lI Rules, 2016. 

1. Buls of prtpal'iltlon: 

The lI ... nclll statements ha~e betn prepared on .ecru.1 INslS of .ecountlll3 u~r h'~tO(k:al con convention In 
accordance w,th ,enel'illly .tcepted accounting prlflClples In Irldla iilnd IhI! .fle-vanl prOVisions of Ihe COmpanies Act. 
2013 Includlll3 Ind'an ACCOuntins St.Jndards not,11ed Ihere u~r. tIIcept for flnal'lCl.,lnstrume<1ts when! thl! lair 
'o'iI1\illtlon have bttn arrled OUlln .crordlnc:e with thl! .tqulfemenu of resPf(t've Ind AS. 

'-If ".J .... 1s the price lhal would be rec:eoved 10 sell an uset or pI'd 10 t .. nsler. l .. bll,ty In .n .... detty wnsacuon 
btt_ market partICIpants at thoo! measurement IYte, res.rdIHs of whethlr ttyl Pfl(e Is directly obseNable or 
Htirn.ted ~"' anolhe1 ViillUltlO!'l led.,,,quII!. In esll..,.t,,. thl! I,or YIO'ue Olin ISH'! 0( a lleblloty, 1M ComPllny 

tlkes Into Krount the dwrlClentlicS of the ISH'! or lilt.~ly If IniiIrket ~rtlCipanu would take IIMKe dlifKI.eOstlCs 

1n10 t(count When poc.", the .sset or liiiibiliry<tt lhe musuremtnt dilte. 

AlltM numbers In these financial stat_U Ir~ reported In Rupees unles otherwise Slall'd. 

4. SUmmarv 01 ste:nif!u,nt accounti .. poIldes: 

I) U~ oIliUm.t,,: 

The pre~l'iIlion of these fillilncill s,altme<1ts In conlO(mny with lhe rll!CO&nltlon and measurement princ,ples of Ind 

AS requires the mllWl,emenl of the Company 10 ma~e est'mates and ISSumpt!ons IMI.1f1l!Cl the feported balances 
oI.sseu.rId liabilities, disclosures relllltlgto cont1fl8e<1lllablltt!fi.s at Ihe dile of thl! fillilnctal statements and lhe 
reported lmounts of income ilnd I!lIper'lSe for the periods presented The est,mates and .ssumptlons used In Ike 

IoCcompanv1ns finilnctal stat~menls are rosed upon m3l101Rcmenl'S ev~I'h1I1(1n nf ff>I""~'lt f~((~ IIflo1l cir(('!1l~tdnc:" 
.s ~t the d.Jte of Ihe rH1Ifl(1iI1 >1.I ... n"n(~. M"""Io;"m.,,,t btll.,~n ,I\.), lhe ~llmJtcs u:;cd In lhe IIfcp,)r~tlon 01 
fI ... ncl3l statements are pruc!fnl .nd ,ealoOnable. Act~1 results could d,lIerfrom f'lt,matts 

... " . oS 
" c 
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• 
POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

NOles to fin.nclal stltement 101' tlw ytlr lAded Mlrdll1. 202_ 

EltllTlltes .rId IInderlyI", .swmploons are revoewecl on .n oncoInc ~SIS. R!'YIsions to accounlllli estimates all! 
recocnu.ed 111 the penod in wh;ch the esllmates are revised and future penods .re .f'«ted 

lIlY 50IIrce of eslltNItoon of uncertllnty .t the dale of the r",.na.1 Stitltm~S. which mIIy Cili/St it mIIteNl 
Idjll'ltment to the Gilrr;lrc amounts of U\l!t$ MId I .. blllt,es In comlre fllllt\COll YHrs are $pt(lfied hefe-In-after. 

II} UH/ul /nIft of ~'f. pIonr "nd ~I"pmt'nr 
The Com~ny Is ptOVidIrc ~Wltion It the ~tH detived based on \tie useful life specified ..-Ider Schedvle-ll to 
the Compa",es Act. 2013 The Com~nv reviews the u~uI hfe of property. plim.rId equlpment.1 the end of each 

reportl", period. This rNnessmenl may rew!! in Wf'IIt In 6epredaUon expense in future PMOd$. 

bJ P'OVIsions lind (onfrnl/enr II"b,ll/ln 
A provision Is rl!Cosnisei;l when tile Company hIS I pre'>flm obllplion IS it rtiult 01 ~J1 ellen! and It Is pn>babl<!! 
INn '" outflow of rtoSOUrc,u Will be requlfl!d to settle the otIlllitlon. in respect 01 which the rell.ble H!lmate ClIn 
be .... de_ PrOVisions (ucludlna retirement bef1flits) ire not d,Kounll!d 10 Its present .... Iue and are determined 

bfsed on best eStimate requ;rl!d 10 settle the obIlptlon a t the ~llnce $heet date. ThI'Se ere reviewed at each 
biollnce sl>eet date. ,djustl!d to reneet the curr!f1t best estlm,tes. Contlnsent lIablliUH are not rec:osnlsed In the 

nllilncill statements. A contillltet1t asset is ne<the< rtCOCnlsed 110< dlKlosed in the flnllnc,,1 stilltements. 

Major prOVIsions rl!COllli1ed In financi.1 statemenl arld 'eilled KCOII01tl". poflcy Ite specified as undet, 
Current I Deferred II. ~.bililies· Refe!" NOie . ()(fV). 9 Irld 26 

Otllrr es timoteJ." 

The pte~~11Ofl of r",.ndill SUlemtnU ~ Ht~tes ilf!d anumpllOllS t~t aff«t the repooted lmoonl of 
asstU.lilbihtles, disdowre of eonu,.enl I~bilities at the dale of flllllt\COlf SliltmtenlS and the repo<1ed.mount 01 

(PWe0ue5 and 1!llpi!nSts for the reporti". period_ Speofally, the Company estlmales the ptobiibUity of coIIecuoo of 
.cCOl/lm ree_bIe by .. rlllylllll hiUorialllll'iffient ~l1ems. (ustomer COflCentrltlOflt. Clntomet' credtt·worthonen 
arld Cl/l'rent economic Irencb. If the fiNlncial conditoon of. ("'tomtit det~tes, l(Sd,tlOflal allowances ~y be 

reqvlrtd 

G/ R_"ut' from optrtJf1OllS; 

The Company d"iYl!S revenl/ts primarily from cOIUlt\iCtlon & ~pment of blilldinp .nd Jnfraw\iCt .... e. 

Revenue Is teCOInlzed upOn Ir~nsf" 01 control of land or UMS of the bIi,Id"'1 constructed by lhe company. to the 

custOlntfS In an amoont that refll!CIs thecOl\1idefI\lOnweexpect 10 reee/Ye In exchance fOl'. 

Revenue II ","sured II the fair value 01 the conskiefatlOn received or rl!Cefv.ble, ta~l,,& intO account contt"ilClually 
defined t"ms of pIIyment and I!IIcludlfIB ta.es or dUlles collecled on beNl! of Ihe ICM!rnmtnl_ In CJlse where there 
Is 1\0 lItICertllntv IS to measurment or collect.bility of (onsideratiOl't. revenue Is rtCOCnised IS soon IS the (ontrol 

of lhe lind or unIts of tile bIII!dilll has been liven_ When thert Is uncertllnty IS 10 measurement or ullimate 

1;01I«t.bll,ty. revenue recOS",uon Is postponed until W("h lItICert.",ly Is resolved. 
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POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

Notes to finilndal statement lor the year C!nded March 31. 2014 

Tile COmpany presents revetlue$ net of indirect tues In its stltement of Profit and loss. 

b}Or/tfor",come; 

Other jocome is comprised pnmarilyof Interest Income, Income from sale of property, plam & eqUlpmftltS. 

Interest locome from, financi,l anet Is recOCnlsed when It is probalbte tkat the economic benefits will flow to tile 
Companv and the amount of Income can be measured rehablv. Imerest Income is accn.oed on II Ume balsls, by 

refereoce to the prtoc.pal outslandinl and at the effective Interest rate appllCllble, which is the rille tkat ell<lctlv 
discounts estimated future cash receipts thrO\l&h the e.pected hfe of Ihe f1r\iocial ISsei 10 Ihl! n~fs net carrying 
.mount on ,nitlal recognition 

Income from SIll' of property, pian! & equipmenlS Is recocmsed as when It .tri~s!. e. on sale of property, plant & 
equipment. 

liil Propenv, Plant & Equlpm"nl: 

oJP'~rf'I. Plom & Equipmem 

All Property, Planl and Equipments If" stated ilt axl less .<;(umullte.d depreciation and accumulated Impalrmenl 
losses. Clnt locludes expendnure that fs dlrectly attributable to settl,. the ISset ready for intende.d u~. 
Su~ue<11 cosu Ire ;ocluded In Ihe asset's canymcamount or rKOlnised as a separate asset, liS apPfopri;lle, only 
when it Is probable that future economic benefiu associaled Willi the Ilem wlll flow to the company and therost of 
the item un be measured reliably. AU ot!1<!r repalr~and malnlenance ere charged to profil or Ion dun,. the 
reporting peoQ(l In wllleh they are incurred. 

ArI ilem of property. plant INI equJpment Is oo.recoenl~ upon disposal or when no future economic benefilS Ife 
e~pected to arose from tile continued use of Ille iSset. Any saln or loss &n~lng on the dispos.iIl or reuremenl of an 
Ilem of property, plant and equipment 15 detennlned 1$ the dllfereMe between Ille sales pmc~s and the carryi"l 
amount of Ille I~set and Is (KOlIn<sed in profit Of loss. 

Borrowing com directly atlribut~ble to the acquisillon, construction or production of q ..... lifyl,. assets, which are 
assets tllat necessarily take a substantial pertod of lime to let ready for their Intended use, ilreadded to the cost of 

those assels. until weh lime as Ihe as}f1S are slibsianliilily IUd<! fortheir interlded u~· 

b) Cop/wi won,. ;n-P'OfJ,ess 

Properties in Ihe cour~e of conmuctlon (CWIPI for prodlJClion. supply or administrative PUfJlOse5 are tarried III 
COSI. less any recOgnised impairment loss. COSt Includes po'ofessional fees and, for qualifying ilS\oets, borrowirlfl COSU 
OIp1l1llsed In accordance with the COmpany's accounti", polky. Such properties are classified to the appropriate 
categories of property, plant and equlpmenl when completed and ready for Intended use. DepreciatIon 01 these 
assets. on the same ba$is as other propertv iSsetS, commences when theasseu are rl9dylor their Intended use. 
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POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

Not~. t o flnandal statement for the yeu ended March 31, 2024 

I~I D.pr~I •• I"n on Proptlny, Planl " Equlp",. nl : 
Depredation Is recosnlsed so as to wnle off Ihe COSI of assets Ie$~ thelf resldllCll values over their useful lives, USing 
the straight·hne method Th~ est'mated u.~ful hVM, rHi<lual vallie' and d~preciatlon method are reviewed a' tne 
end of e.Jch reporting perIOd, w,th the efleet 01 any changes In estima te accounted foron a prospective baSIS. 

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less tIS estimated 

residual value_ Depreciation on tanBibie property, plant aM equIpment Is proVIded over the useful lives specified 

uMer Sockedule II to the Companie:s Act, 201]. 

Natur~ of A .. eu 

Office Eejulpments 

Furniture & fi~lurl!S 
COmputers 

VehIcles 

vI Int angible A.sen ,nd Amortl,allon: 

UHfulll f. 
(In Years) 

• • 
6 

IntangIble IIssen purc~sed lire melsured at cost or fair value liS on the date of .cqulsltlon. II. IIpplbble, less 
accumulated amOn, sa Bon and accumulated impairment, If any. 
Intang'ble assets are amortIsed on a str"'Bht line b3S1so""r the" H"mated u«e!uIIIVH, commenc'''lIlrom tI>I! dale 
the assells available to the Company for Its Intended use. 

followin8 lnl"al recogn'tiOn, Iflla03ible assels are earned at cost less accumulateo amortl$ition and i(CUmulaleG 

Impairment losses, If any. Internally generate<1lntillllible assets, e>«:ludingupilali$ed development com, Ire not 
capitllised and eKpendlture Is reflecteG in the Statement of Profit ~nd loss in the vear in which Ihe e~pendilure i. 

Incurred 

Theestlrnated useful life of Ihe inlangible asselS and the ilmort .. ilt;"n period ;ore reviewed at the end of each 

fiNincial ye~r and Ihe amortisation period Is revl$ed to reflecllhe chanee<1 ~tlern, If any 

villmpairmenl of Propertv, Plant & Equipment and intangible u«en : 
AI the."d of each repOrtlllfj period, tile Company revi~ the carrving amounts of Its Propenv. Pl~nl & Equlpmenl 

and IntangIble assets to determine whether there lianv ;n(l ..... too" th~t those assels hive suffered an impa!rmeflt 
loss If any such IndlCiltion exls!$. the feeovefllble .. mount of lhe iSSet (s Htimated In order 10 determine the eotent 
of the Impairment loss (if any). When It I. not possible 10 H Umi te the rKO"l!flIblo: ~",oum of ~n ,ro.d,,,,doal asset. 
the Comp.1ny estimates the recoverable imount .. 1 tI\IH ... h·Ko:"~rdli"K ullit 10 whi.-h the /lSset beiof'1£s. Whe<l1I 
reasonable ind couslste,,\I);I.,suf .lkK'''!I"n c"n be kll;-nto" eo, corpora te asset. are also ililocated 10 IndIVidual cash. 

lten;'I~tlnK u",\s. Of"utho:rwlse Ihey Ire , lIocated to the smallest groupo! cash·generatlng units 'or which a 

reasonable and consistent allocation basis un be ldenlified. 

Intangible BSselS with Indefin,te useful I,ves .no intl,,!!ible asselS not yet .vallable for use ire tested for impairment 

at least annually, and whenever there Is an Indication that the asset may be Im~"ed_ 
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POPUlAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT UMITED 

HOles to financial statement for lhi! yur ended Mardi 31, 2024 

II;e<:DVerlble amOUnl., the kl,he. of lair \lalui! len.:oslS of disposal and value In use. In issening val...e In use, the 

estimated future cash flows are discolloted to their p'e$enl val ... " us1nell pre·tl'~ discount fate that reflects current 
market assessments olllle lime value of money ;I"d lhe risks specirlc to the asS<!t for which Ihe ~tlmates of luture 

t~5~ naws have nol been adjusted. 

Ci!rryln& amount ~uals to cost Jess &ccumulned depreciatIOn and iKcumulated Impairment Iossn recOln,sed 

previously_ 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash'general;", "ml,)ls estimated to be less than Itscarryin, amovnt. Ihe 
urrvln' amount of the assel lor cash'sene'aung unit) is red\K"ed to Its recoverable lImo"n! An Impairment loss IS 
recosn,sed immediately In profit or loss. 

vlij8orrowlnll Costs: 
Borrowl", costs directly attributable 10 the acqUISItion, constructIon or productIon of qoalifyl"tllsseu, which are 

a~St'ts that necessanly ta~e a substantIal period of time to get feady for their Intended use or sale, are alkled to the 

cost of those ils~elS, untIl SIKh time as Ihe assets lire substantially rudy for the" Intended U!.e or sale. 

Interest Income elrned on tile temporary Investment of specifIC borrowincs pendIng their expenditure on Q..allfylng 

autts is dedlKltd from Iht borrowing costs tli81b1e for capitahsatlon 

All other borroWing costs are recosnlsed In profit or loss in the period In whkh they ire incurred. 

1/IlIllnvenlorle5: 

InV{!ntories Includes land acquired for resale or conSlrlKtion purposes. The same IS valued at COSI or net realisable 

val ue whk;hevtr Is less. 

1·lln..,.: 
In fiI!SJM!'Cl of iSseIS !i.ken on lease, leases art classified as finance leases whenever the terms 01 tltt lease ' .. nder 
substantially all the riSk$ alld rewards IncldenlallO Ihe ownership 01 an nsel 10 lhe Company All olher lenes are 
classIfied is operi\lng lenes. 

Opt'ralinslease payments for lands are recOgnlled IS prtPilymenlS and amortise<! on II sl("lilllll·hne basis over the 

lerm of the lease. COntingent rentals, if any, 3.lslns under operallns leaSf!:'i a .... recognised as an expense in the 

period In whkh they are Incurred. 

_I Flnincial 'notrument.: 

A rlnancial Instrument ~ any conlfiC! l!\it glves .ise to a linanch.1 IS ... ' of on .... ntltv and a financial Uablllly or 

equity Instrument of '!"IOther entity. 
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POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEME NT LIMITED 

NOles to financial stalemenllor the yea, ended March ]1, 2024 

1. Financial Assets 

oj Inlfiol 1'U09/11t;on and mwsu(e"'~t 

At Initial 'KOlInolion, ttle CQm""nv measures a financ,al asset (whICh are not meilsured al fair value) Ihrouah profit 

or loss .11 ilS fair value plus or minus transaction tons thai are directly ittributable 10 the a<:qulsitlon or Issue of the 

finlOCililllQt 
bl Slibsequent meosurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are ClassIfied In following categories: 
I) FlnanclalasselS measured at.morti!.ed COSI; 
iii Financialasse!s at fair VilI...e 111,0\lllh profil or loss (fVTPL) and 
III) financlallS~ts II f .. " value 1t\.OUlh olhe. comprehens,ve ,ncome iFVTOO). 

The ComPl'ny clusifles Its fi".nd"l15sets In the abolle mentioneil call!lorles bilsed on; 

al The ComiJanys buSiness model lor manall,ng the flmlnci.1 assets, and 

b~ Tile contractliill cash flows cl\ar<tCtenstics of tile f..,a~llss.e1 

I) FinarlOaJ assets measured at amortised con 

A financial Bssel i~ menured ill Bmort'sed cost If bolh of Ike follow Ill, conditions are mel: 

iI) A flmlnel,,1 assel Is meilsured at amortised COSI If the flnancl,,1 assel Is held ""llhln a bus.iness model ""hose 

objKtive .s to hold financial asselS in order to COIiKI COnlrkllii1l uih flows and lhe ContrilClliill l"fml 01 Ih" 
financial assets give rise on specill<!d dilles to cash flows that Ife solely Pilyments of principal and intefest (WPI) on 

the prlnc.pal amount ooUlandinl. 

b) Financial assets are subsequently measured at ilm()(1lSed COSt using the effective Interest rate {EIR) method. 

Amortised cost Is calculated by tilkl", Into account ,lOy discount or premium on acqulsillon and fees or costs lila! 

are an Integrlll Pilrt of!~ EIR. The fiR amortisallon is Included in flOilnce Income In the profit or loss. The lones 

arising from Impairment a'e recocnised in the profit or loss 

ii) Financi"t assets at lair value throUlh profit 0< loss (FVTPl) 

Financial asselS afe measuf<!d.t la" value throulh profit aM 10" unle .. it Is mea.ured.\ .rnort .. ed 1;05' or a, fBlr 
.. "Iue IhrOOlh otker comprehenSive Income on in.t.al rKogn.tlon. The transaction costs dlrKtly attributable to the 

acquiSition of f.nancial .. sets Bnd liabihtul$ ilt filir vallie Ihro\lih pfofit Or loss are Immediately rKO(t;niled In profit 

or loss 

iii) Finanei,llIssets at fair .. alue throulh Olher romp.'eh.enSlve income (fCToo); 

Financial nsets are measured al f<, .. vilue thfOUllh othef comprehensive Income if 1I>('5e IIn.1nci.:ot usets ife held 

"",thin D busine .. model whose oblec:liv~ Is D<:hi~ by collectl", both COnlrKlliiIl c.sh flows that gives rise on 
spKified dates to sole"" PIIymenlS of prlnclPIII aM Interest on Ihe prrndPl'I amount OIII.tandi",lnd by sell"'1 

lirlanclal assets. 

A financial asset Is measured at fair value thrOl/&h profit Of loss IInless il Is measured al amortised cost or lair value 

Ihro\lih other compreh.ensrve Income. In ai1<litlOn. The COm~ny may elect to tlesl&nate a financial ilsset. which 

otherwise meets amortised tOst or MOO criteria, as lit MPL Howevtf", such election Is allowed only If doing so 

reduces or eliminates a measurement or rec:olnlUon incons,stency (referred to as 'accounting mismuch') 

cash.M ca.n EqulYalenn & OIher current finlnc,.llSsetselc .• re clas,;fied for measure"""n! at.mor!loed COlt. 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

Notes to financial statement fof the year ended March 31, 2024 

tJ DereeOQflition 

The Companv det«ogfl'l~ " financ:~1 assel when cOfltr.ch.Jal rllhlS to tile cash flows from the assel oe><pore. or 
.. I""" ;ll'd".r" .. tlo .. ""anelal .sse, .. n.d wbstant",lly ,II the rISks ~nd rew~rcls of ownership of the assel to another 
po", 

On d~ecOSflltion of it fin~I>!:'al assel ,n its enlorety, the differente between the ~ssetS'S ClInylnS .mount.nd Ihe 
sum of the conslderatlon recelYed and rece,vable is r«OCniled In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

d/lm(XJirmem 
The Company .pplles ~pecled crednlones (ECL) model for measurement .. nd recos;nltoon of lOsS Illowance on the 
follow,ng= 

I. rr.de rectlvables. 
II. Financial assets measured at amontled cost (other Ih.n trade recelv.bles and lease receIVables). 

m. financial assets measured at farr value through olher comprehensive Income (MOO). 

ECl Is the difference between all conlra"u~1 cash flows that are due to Ihe ComlJ<ltny In accordance WIth the 
conl/iet and III t he c.sh flolNs that the ent'ty e><pects to receive (l.e.,.11 cash shortfa lls). discounted It the o<ilinal 
effeclive Interest rale. 

In Clse of trade receivables, the Companv follows I slmphlied apPfOitCh INhereln an amount equal 10 lifetIme EUIs 
measured and recosniled as loss allo .... ance. As a practiclll e~pedlent, Ille Company USI!J a proVIsion matn~ 10 

measure lifetime EU on its portfolio of trade rece;vables. 

In case of other .s~t.S (flSttd as Ii and '" abo~), the Companv determ'nes if there has been. sigt'llfocant increas.!! to 

credll ris~ of the fit'l~ncl~1 ~sset stOce inotlal recOgnotKln II the credit rls~ of such a!s.!!!! has flOt Increased 
.IBnlflc~nt!y, It'l .maut'lt equII to H-monlh ECL Is muwred '00 recocfltzed IS loss ,lIowance. i'W .... ever. If cred,t 
ri~ has increased SIBnlficantlv. an amount equal to lifet,me ECl Is measured and rer.osnized as Ioss.llo .... ance. 

Subsequentlv. if the credit QualotV of Ihe financial I!s.!!t improves such that there is no Ioncer a Significant IncrNs.!! 

in credit risk since initial recognllion, the Companv r!"lefts to recogniltng Impa"menl loss al!o .... ance b.aSf'd on 12-

month EeL 

Ufetlme ECL are the expected cr~t lones resulli"ll from "II pGSslbje defeult events over the expected hfe of a 
financial asset. 12·monlh Eel are a porlion of II>! I.fetlme ECt which result from defau lt even" thaI are p'l5slble 
wI,hln l2 manths from the report'nl date. 

ECl Impairment loss "lIo .... ance (or re«ersalJ recotlniled during the period Is recogniled IS income/ expeMe In the 

Stalemenl of Profit and lOS5 under the head ·Other elIpefISt5'. 

ECLare measured In" mant'ler that they refiect unbtased Ind probablllly weighled amounts dele/mloed IlV a ratlle 
of outcomes, taking IntO account the t'me value of money and other reasonabje Information Ivallable IS. result of 
Plst events. current cooddlons Ind forecasts of future ecoflOm;c cond,tlons. 
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POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT UMITED 

2. f lnandal Uablllt ies 
pj Jmt'(J1 re(oani!oOn and ~CI~urelMnl 

All financial liab'hlle~ are f!'Cognised initially al fair v,Ji<Oe ,md Wbsequently carried ill amortised cost usmg Ihe 
effe<:llVI!: In\e~st method. 

The company's financial liabilIties Include tl'3de i1nd olher payables, loans and borrowinll$ Inclu(ll.,. bank 
overdrafts 

hJ Subs"eqllent meosuremenr 
The measurement of financ:illliabllil,1!S depends on the" classification, 15 d~ribed below; 
i) finall(,alliablhties meilsured at "mortised cost. 
;.) F,nan<:'ilillab,htiesal fa" Vllu! throl/lh profit Of loss. 

il Financial liabilities measured ill amortised con' 

All financial liabil,t,es aft meaSured ill "morused cost. Any diloCount Of premIum on redemption! seUle~1 is 
recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss as flnance cost over Ihe life of Ihe liability using thI! eff!'C\,ve interest 

method and atljuSled 10 Ihe liablhtyflgure disclosed In the Balance SIIeet. 

Iii Fioanc",1 asselS ~I faIr value thl'OUih profil or loss (FVTPL): 

Flnanc;,,1 I'abillties il fair value Ihrough profit or I~s Include financial liabllilill5 held for !radina atld financial 
liab,lIties IIfll,nated upon Inillal recosnilion as il fair value throulh profit Or 10 ... Flnand.lli.bllitll!'$ .re da .. med 
as held for !rad,,,,lf IheV are Incurred for the purpose of repurchaSlnsln the near term. Gains or IosSII5 on liabilities 
held for \radln,l.e .eco8nlsed in the profil o. loss. 

Financial liabilities desiRnated upon inollal recosnitioo al fair value Ihrough profit or loss Ire IIfllgnaled as weh al 

the lnoIi'l date of recolllition, and only If the criteria In Ind AS 109 ire satisfied. For liabilitIes desi80ated as FVTPL, 

faIr value gaons! losses attributable to chanses In own credit risk are recosnized In 00. These IiIlns} 10 .. are nol 
subsequentlv triMferred to P&L ~ever, the comp.lny may transfer the cumuliltlve saln or loss ""thln eqUity. All 

olher changll5 in fa" valueol such Ilabihlv ire recognIsed in Ihe statement 01 profil and loss. 

r}~e~nmon 

Financial lIablhtles are derecognlsed "'hen Ihe Ilabilltv is extinaulshed, thaI Is. when the contractual obll!auoo is 

disch"rged or cancelled or expired. When.o exlstlna fi .... nci.lllability Is replaced by another from tile same lender 

on substanually different terms, or the terms of an exislin8 liabilIty ol.e substantially modified. suo:;n an excllilnge or 

rnodifi(oliloo Is truted as the: derKognillon 01 Ihe orlgilloll liability and the recOf:nitlon of ol new liability. The 

d<fference In tile respective carry"'glmoonn is recocnlsed In Ihe stllem!fll of profiland 10)5. 

3. £qulty innruments 
An equity InSlrumeol Is any contract tn.t INIdencll5 a res.lduatlnterest In the assets of an eotllY aher deduct;na all 

of Its liabilities. 

4. Offseu i", of fi nan-clillinstf\lmenil 
Fioancial issets and r. .... ncial liablhtill5 Ife offset and the net amount Is reported In lhe standalone balance sheet if 
lhere Is. curreotly eoforceable lell"! rllIhl lO offset the recognIsed amounts and there Is an Intention 10 '>elite on II 
net basis, to realize t he assets lind sellie the liabilities simullaneously. 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT liMITED 

Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

5, FalrVllLtf Menurement 

hi' .. alue Is the price Ihal would be rKeived to sell an asset Of paid 10 tramfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the menuremenl date undercurrent market conditions. 

The Company categoril!i assets alld liabilities measured II fair value into one of three levels dependi", on the 
ability loobserve Inputs employed in their measuremenl whICh i.e described as follows: 

(a) Levell inpun are quoted ptil;t!$ (unadjusted) In active markets for ldental assets or liabilities, 

Ib) Level 2 InpuU are inputs that are observable, either d.rKIIy or Indlfe<:tly, other IMn quoted pI1c.es inch.tded 
w.th,n level I for the iSSet or liabllitv 

(c) Level 31npuiS are unobservable Inputs for the assel Of lIabolltv re/1e<:tlng siJInlflCilnt modlflcatiom to observable 
related market data or Company's ilssumptlons about pr;cing bv marlcet participants 

_II (ash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of prelentlltlon In the Sliltemeni of [ash now •• cash and cash equlvalenls Intludes cash on hand. 
depoSits held It ull WIth flnan(:<allnstitutlons, Olher short-term, hlehly liQu.d investmenn With orielnal m~lurltles 

of three tTIOflths Of less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and whkh are subje<:t to lin 

lnsienlficant rls~ of changes In value, and tJank overdralls. 

_II) fOfelen curren-cy T,ansaalons 

The fUJl("tioll<l1 currency of the company Is Indian rupee, 
On Inlti~1 recognition, lIli foreign currency (ran!actlOns are trllnslaled Into the funclional currency usinl the 
exchange fltes orevalllr\S on the d.tte of the tr~n'MKtiOtI, M at the reportl", dale. forel,n currency rnonelllry use" 
~nd liablhtles are translated lit the e.chanee .ate orevalh,. on the Balance Sheet date and the eJOCMl'I8t ,alns or 
losses are rKOBn/sed In Ihe Statement of Profit and Loss 

.1Ii) Employee benefits 

!lJ Short ferm employee benefits 
Shon Term benefitS lire recognised as lin expense at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Proht and Loss 

of the year In which the related iervice IS rendered, 

b} Post employmem ~fle/l'l$ 
As the company doesn't meet the employees' threshold currently, the company Is not reqUired to contribute 

towilrds ,ny plan (neither defined contribution plan !'lOr defined benefit plan) under any la w fOf the time bel", In 

force. The company shill! slart contributlns a5"nd when It;s required bv the law, 

. ,V) Income h_es: 
Income tax upense reprell!flts the sum of the tu currently payable alld deferred t~ •. 

!I} Current 10" 

The tax (urrently peyltble Is bitsed on IlIxabie profit for the year Taxable profit differs from 'profit before ta.' liS 
reported In the statement of profit and loss because of items of income ore.pense that are taxable Of deductible in 

other yeaf1 and items that are ne~er tll ... ble or deductible. The Comp~ny'5 current taxis cak:ulated USI", tax rates 

ttI.Jl have been enacted or substantively e"acted bv the end of the reporllne period. 
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POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LI MITED 

NOI H to fin" nc!"J sta tement for the year endl'<l Mard .ll , 2024 

bIDef~~fo" 

Oefefred ta. Is r«O/Ini • ..u UII t~mpOrafV dlfl"rentes ~tween tile carryIng amounts of assets and liab,l",,,, In the 
fiMnc~1 statements and the corresponding ta~ bases used in the tOmPUt~tion of loS.able profit. Deferred UIK 

liablhtles are generally r«ogn,sed for all ta!table temporal'! differencE'S. Defefred tax usel' are generally 
r«ognisl'<l for all deductible tempoRfV differences to tke eXI"nt Ihat II Is probable lilal ta)I;Jble profits WIll ~ 
available against which tlKKe dl'<loct,bl" temporary dIfferences un be utilised. Such deferred tax iSsets illd 
Ilibliitle, oSre not rt!(O/Inlse<! if Ihe lemporal'! difference iri!.l!S from lhe Initial recognition (other than in a bUSIness 

comblnahon) of assets arid liabilities In a lransactlon l!\al affens neilher lhe laxable prOfll nor lhe accountong 
profil. 

The Url'!mll: ~mount of deferre<!lalC .ssets Is re.newe<! at tile end of each reporting period ,nd reduced to Ihe 
""Ienl Ihallt Is no longer probable thaI ,,",ffielent laxable prohU WIll !)e avaHable to allow all or part of the U5-eIIO 
be rec:overt)(i 

Deferred tax liablhtles and assels are menurl'<l allhe tax If tel Ihat are ""peeled 10 apply In lhe period In whil;h the 
lIablilly Is sellle<! or Ihe assel realised, based on la~ rales (and tax laws) that have been enacted or SubStfnlively 
enacled by the end of the reporting pen«!. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabihlles and asselS refi«\S Ihe lax consequences lilal would follow from the 

manner in which the Company expeels. at the end of lhe reporting period. to reo:;over or settle the ca''Y'ng amOunt 
of Its assels arid flabihlles. 

c} (,men! Imd d~f~"~ to>" {or the ~riod 
Current ~nd deferred lao ,Ie r!!COlInlsedln profit or loss, I!lCcept when they relale to Items lhat lire 1"I!C000nlsed In 
Olllet tomprehen~ve Income or dorectly in eqUIty, In which CII!.e, Ihe turr~nl and deferred tax are IIlso reo:;ognised in 

other comprehensive income or dlreclly In equIty respecllvel~ . Where current tao or deferred In arl!.1!S from lile 
InItIal accountIng for II busines~ combInatIon, the t3> effe<::1 Is included In the accounling for Ih~ b~iness 

comblfli1l10n . 

IV) Provl.lons, 

Provisions .re le<:Ognisl'<l when the Compan~ has a presenl obhgatlon \Iegal or construclive! liS /I result of /I past 
event, II Is prohable thai the COmpany Win be required to sellle the obligation, and. reliable estimate ~n be mltde 
of the lmount of the oblipllon. 

lhe .mount rec:ognised IS a proVIsion I. Ihe ben eslimate of the consideration required to settle the p"ps.o>nl 

obhpllon al the end 01 the reporting perrod, taking InlO accOunt the risks and uncertainties surrounding Ihe 

obligation. Wilen a pro.nsion Is menured using the cash flows estimaled to seltle the present obllplion, lIS 

aI.rylng 'mount Is the present valtlll of those(lIsh flows {when the eff«t oflhe time YilI\lIl of money Is maleri,l) 
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POPUlAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

Notes to flnanclal stattment lor It.t. ~ ... r ended M~"h 31, 2024 

.vI} hrnlnlS per eq ... lty share: 

Sni<: earnings per equily share Is comj)!lted Dy dMdlnllhe net pro!!t attrlbulablt 10 the equitv holders 01 the 
company by the we,shleO ~ve"&e number o! eqUIty shar~ outstanding durinlthe period. Diluted earnings per 
equity shart is comj)uted ~ divld,nK tho! net profit attnbutablt 10 the eqult~ hOlders of the company after adJusting 

for dilutPd earning. by the weilhted "verale number of equity ShaftS considered for derlvin, basic earnings J)er 

l'Quity mare and al~ the welghled average numbl!. of equity shares that CQuid hhe been Issued upon conversion 

of all dilu\Jve polential equity shares. The dilutive potent,al eqlli!y shar~ a.e adjusted for lhoe proceeds receIVable 

had the eqUIty shares bef!n a(tually issued at f&lf v;)lue (I.e. the average market value of the OutstandIng equit~ 

shares). Dilutive potenl!a\ eqult~ shares art deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless Issued at a 
laler dott. Dilutive POlenti.1 eqUIty skares are determined independently for each period presented. 

Tht numb« of equity sharts ar>d potentially d.l",tlve eqUIty sl\alres are adjusted retrospectIvely for all periods 

prHented for ilnY slla.e splIts and bonus sllares issues 1nc;luding for thanges tflected prior to tht approval of the 
!illilncial5latemenls by the Soard of Directors . 

.vIi) Dividend: 
FlfIIIl dhllden<h on shares are recorded as a liability on the date 01 approval by tt.t. shareholders and Interim 

dividends are recorded as a liability on tho! dateo! dectaf1iltion bylhl! companv's Boartlof Directors. 

kVI;l} CetWil, SeNke Ti~, Vi! & GST: 

GST credit on malenals j)IIrchaud I seNICI! .. valled for construction & development of the building are laken Into 

account ilt Ihe time of j)IIl1:h.se .nd GST credit on purchase of uj)ltalltems wherever applk"ble are taken Into 

account as and when thoe assets are ilcQulfed 

GST credits ~ taken are ulIl;,ed for pavmem of GST on llnltssold. The unulIlI,ed GST credIt Is camed 1000ard In Ihe ...... 
j~I~} Se,men! reporti", 
The ChIef OperallOf\ilI DeciSIOn Maker (CODM) monitors the operat>n8 results of Its business Segments separltely 

for the purpose 01 making decisions about resource allocallon and performance assessmenl. Segment petlormance 

Is evaluated D.ased on profil or km lind I! m""sured consIstently WIth profit or loss In tt.t. financIal Slatemtnts. 

Operati", segmenlS /lrt reported In a manner conslslent .... ,th the Internal reporting to the CCOM. 

Accordingly, 1M Soard of Direclors of the Company IS CCOM for lhoe J'IU.pose of segmenl report;",. Rer!!r note 29 

for seamem Information presented. 

(0) Statement of Cash flows 
Cash flows ilIfe reported IIS,"S the Indirect method, .... hereby profit 111055) before la>c Is adjusted for thoe effects of 
transactions of non tiIIsh na lure and any deferrils or aaruals of past o r lul ... re ush receipts or payments. The ush 

flows from opef1illlng, investJ"i and finanetns actMlies of the company are segregated based on the available 

Information 

'0.11 OJ)l!nol lng cyel!!: 
The OJ)l!railnS cycle Is the time between the ilCqulsll'On of assets for processing and their realiialion In ush and 
cnh equivalents. The COmpany has Identified Iwelve months as Its operating evele. Accordl",ly, "II .nets .nd 
liabilities hall!! been ClaSSIfied as current or llOIl-cufftnt as per the company's operating eve]e and other criteria set 

out In 100 AS 1- 'Prl!'lentatlon of fmanciai Statements' and Schedule III to tile Companies Act. 2011. (,j;:;::1i~" 



POPU\.AI\ ESTAT(IIIIANAGEMENT UMITED 

NOIts to fjn~nci,,1 $1.1" .... "1 for 1M yea • ..-de<! Ma.dlll, lOll 

Notl 5 : Propeny. P,ant.nd Equipment ·000 

Pa rtklol ll'S Compul lIf'$ 
OffiCi Fum!!u •• & 

(quipmanu Fixlur., 
Vehicles Totl. 

Gross c..'rvi"l Vir ... , 

As II April 1, lOll 468 23S 160 21,078 28.940 
AclchtJOn dunnc tile YO' . 
OtOucbOn durinal"" yel! . (l ,lS9) (3.359J 
As "M .. dlll , lon ... m '" 14,119 25, §.Ii1 

AdditIOn dUt1tl1 the yeir , . 
()eduo;lon dUM,Ihe yn, 
ASlt March 31 , 10 14 ... m I .. 14719 15, 511 

Actumulaltd ~precj.llo,,' 

As . t 10,.111, 2022 " 5 '" 13.226 1l.412 
Add,tlOtl dunnl tlle ye,,' " 19 2 .... 2.616 
Otdl.lClion durln& the \'i!iI( 
As .I Mardi )1 , 1023 " , '" lS,no 16,028 
,t,dd'ioon d,,'inl the year " " 1,791 1,810 

OtIducloon durinlthe ye .. , 
As.t Mardin, lOll " 

, '" 17,601 17,849 

Net C&tTYlnc Vllue: 

~ on April I , ZOll '" no " 14,851 15,528 

As on MilIch 31, lOll '" no 18 4,,," 9,553 

IS on M;lrch 31, 1014 '" n, , 711' 7, 73) 

Note' : Inu ... lbl . ... n~ 

• p,ni<ul .. , s 
Computer 

10u,1 
Softw.,. 

Grou Ca,...,r"l v . ..... , 
As on Aprilt , Ion " " AddJIoon dur,n, t',,~ yur . 
Deducttoll cIurI", the Y6t 
A, on Match J I, 2023 " " Aoehuoll dur,,,, , he> yel' 

Oeductoon 6\1<'0", the yel< 
AI on March 31, 2014 " " 
A«umuilled Oep'ec:la'!oll: 
A,oll April I , 2022 t3 t3 
Add,llon durIn, the yeu , , 
Deduction durf", tile year , 

AI on M~rch ]1, 2023 " " Aeklotion du"nl the veil' , , 
Deducuon durfllllhe 'j'f'ir 
Af on M.nh 31, 2024 " " 
Nel Clrtyf", Vilue: 
As Oil April I, 20ll " " '" on Marm ) I, 2023 " " 
", on Marm 11, 2024 n n TOIl' ".MI.~U Net 7,746 

(t'''SIbie • inlaflflible/ 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT lIMITEO 

Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

"000 

, Non-Current Inynlmellts As al As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Inveotment In Partnership Firms (refer not.! 17) 
MIs. JayAmbl! tnu~rpnse 3702 "''' MIs. Shiv Enterprise 4585 4585 

(Refer NOI" 37 to these fln'nc'al slatements fOf the description of Ihese 
,nvenmenn). 

Tot,l 8,287 8,287 

, Other Non-Current fln.nclal Anets AW A", 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Unsecured and considered &GOd 

Sl!Curlty Depos'ts w'th torpor"tes "nd others 1574 1574 

Total 1,574 1,574 

, Deferred Tn Assets !Net) ~ .. Asat 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 . 

Deferred Tn Assets 
T,me differer>ee of depn!clat,on as per r._ Provision and Company law on 0 
Property. PI;Jnt and Equipment 

Carned Forward 8uslness Losses & Unabsorbed Dep""IIJOn .," 4847 
Tot,,1 ~ferred Ta. Anets 4,847 4,847 

Deferred Tu Uabll/tles · 

Net ~ferred Tax Assets 4,847 4,847 

Note M~ment of deferred tax aSseh 

Tl...., difference 
c.rrled forw"d 8uslneu 

Particulars lo .. es & Unabsorbed 
of depred.,!lon 

Ocpr"d~ t;on 

AI March 31, 2023 " " (harBed I {Cred,ted): 
to profi l Of loss (34) '''' 10 other comprehensive 1r>e0<tl(' . - · 
AI March 31, 2024 • · 
Charled I (Credited) 
to profit Or loss 
W other (omprehenslvj! In",,,,,,, 
At March 31, 2024 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEME NT LIM ITED 

Notes to financial statement for the ye ar e nde d March 31, 2024 

"000 

" Invent()(le5 Aut Aut 
March 31, 2024 M~rc h 31, 2023 

Raw maler;a" -
Wont·In·Proxen 
F,nished Sloxk · sono S0130 
SI()(e5 Be Olhe~ • 
Siock in Trotde · 
TOI~I 50,130 50,130 

U Cash Be Cash Egu lvalenls 
.... As al 

Mart h )1, 2024 M~"h 31, 2023 

Cash on hand " " Balances wllh Bank '" '" TOI~I '" '" 
OIhf r CUr[fn! Flnan~Ja' a!a!S .... .... 

" March )1, 2024 M~rch 31, 2023 

OIhe Current financ;ial.6.$seU 

" " Total " " 

" Oth~ ~u r[! n l21S$~ ls 
As al As ~I 

M;orch 31, 2024 M;orch 31, 2023 

PrepaId Expenses '" '" 
Adv~nces l,ven 101' ~qulsil lon of lind 427680 427680 
8ala"'es with Stall/tory Authorities 11654 11654 
Total 439,487 439,537 

Egull~ Share !;al!l!al 
Asat As ill 

" Much 11, 2024 Ma.ch )1, 2023 

II)A\lthotlsed Share Capital 

4,50,00,000 Eq\l ,ty shares of Rs. 1() each 

las al March 31, 2023: 4,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10eiKh) ' 50000 '50000 

III] I"\led, S\lbsc/ibed & Pald·up Capital . . 

1,40,00,200 equIty shires of Rs 10 each '\Illy paid 
l~ilS ill Milrch 31, 2023 ' 1,40,00,200 equily Shilfl'S of Rs 10eiKhi 140002 140002 

TOI~I 140,002 140,002 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

Note$ to financial stateme nt fo r the yur ended March 31, 2024 

·000 

• (., ReconelhaU('n ollhe number of ~hlres OUl~lJnding and the amount of share ( .. pIUI as at March 31, 2023, and March 31, 
2024 are set O\.It OOlow,· 

Piortk:ulars 
AVt Milrth]1, 2024 As at M, r(h 31, 2023 

No. 01 Shares Amt I R~.) No. 01 Shares Amt IRs.) 
SIIare5 at the beglOnlOg 14.000,200 140,002.000 14,000.200 140,002,000 
Add,tton N,' Nil Nil N,' 
DeletIon Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Shares at the end 14,000,200 140,002,000 14,000,200 140,002.000 

(" The details of sllares held by Parent Comp~ny and shareholders holdIng more than 5" shares is sel OUI below 

Particulars "' .. Aut 
Milrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2013 

Ramanbhai 8holid'l5 Patel N., 1.200,700 1,200,700 

• '.58 858 
NM 1.205.700 1,205,700 

Kokllaben Chila&anbll,! Palel • 861 861 

NM. 1.006.500 1.006.500 
M,yt ... kaben Ramanbha; Patel • 7.19 7,19 

NM. 897,900 891.900 
lalilben Daslnalhbh .. i Patel • 6,41 641 

NM. 867,893 867,893 
Dashrathbhill 8110lidas Patel • 6.20 620 

NM. 970,900 970,900 
Chhaaanbl>al flhohdils Pillel • 6,93 6,93 

NM. 746,900 746,900 
PrathmeSI> Chha8anlal Patel • 5.33 5.33 

NM. 878,800 878,800 
Milunana Ramanbhal Palel • 6.28 628 

(,( RI,lIIs, Preler,nces and Resttlctions "'It ached 10 equ ity shares 

The Company has one class of equity shares hav,n" par value of Rs 10 per $I>are. Eilch shareholder is e!lsible for one vote 
~r share h/lld Tl>t dlv1dend, If "'ny pr~ed by the Soard of Directors i~ subject to the apprOllal of Ihe shareholders in the 
ensuln, Annual General MeeUng.!n tht event of liquidation, Ihe equity shareholders are en, lble to lecelve the rema""ln/! 
asse ts of the Company after distribution of atl preferential amounts, If any, In proportion to Ihelr shareholdinS, 

(" 
The Company has not reserved any share for iuue under options .nd comraCI$ or commitments for the sale of shares or 
dis,nvestmen t. 

I·' There lire flO shares Issued pursuant to contractlS) without p.ilymen t belna rll(eIYed In ["II or by way of bonus sha res of 
equity sl>al"l!S baullht back for thll period of 5 years Immediately pr~cedlns Ihe hlance ,heel datil. 



POPUlAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT lIM.TEO 

, 

IS ," , An' As" 

'"" ,.) 
aa'anc~ as per Ian 'inane,al St.;>tement '" '" ~~~ln:r~miUI1'\ receoved on luue of shar~$ 

8;o1."C'" m '" 
)b) , 

per last fin.nCi" Statement 

::~90l1 ~ le~s- loss for the year 
In Ih~ statement of profit i"d loss 

1'0,")" 0) 

,", ; It represents ,eneral pYrpose r~rve created from ;i(:cum\llaled profits of earlier years 

, i eamin,s are the profits earned bv the company over the period. Retained eamln,s can be 
utilised I fOl dislrib\ltlon 10 Its equ,ty shareholders of the companv_ The amo\lnt that can be d,slrlbute<! by , i sharehol~rs Is determine<! based on the req\llremenls of the Companies hI. 2013 

amoonls reported above ilre not d,strlbutable In entlretv. 

" 
Au , "''' March 31, 202~ March 31, 202, 

I'''"','' , i 
from Bank 

IleSS . Current malurot,es orlon,-term debt . 

company '91" '"'' Ilf!<S (\ltrent m~t"ro" .. < (If I"ne-term debt 

".'" 
~ 1'0,"' 

,hos 0''''",'', , , , ... ~",,' ""."~s,, , ,. ~''''' " , , ., 
) " No, II" 

0/ •. , 
l V.o' loin Am,,", 

, March 31, 202, 

" , , 
, ." 

.-, 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

I t fOri ~11JQ!!. 
·",,1 

" 
, ,,,. MarChll~ March 31, 2024 

I;:~:~~ ~o others 
" "''''I ~ 

information has bei!n disclosed to the extent received from such parties and I or identified on the basis of , with the Company This has been relied upon by the Auditors 

" 
, , 

'" March31~~ "" 
I'""'" , , · , Current Account 

~ Payable ... , 
" 10.ho, C."". U,"'". "" 

,,, 
March 11, 202~ 

1~::lr StatutD<V dues 

" 1o,", , "" Asal 

March3~ Mafch3!,2023 

I M""'~~ · I,,,,,,,,, 
, , equlpments 

I, ... , 

Q! flnltt>ed Goods, Work !!I euzaan &l..!! ~!! ", • ", " 1_ Matc~ 

y.. , 

Il..1nd acqwed for resale I development 
· 

<lllhe end of the yea' 
ILand lICQul~ fOf resale I develOjlment · 

, , """~. 

" Mmh n , ~;;'I 
,,, ,. ""." ... "'~ " .. 
..:. , 

I ... " , 

~ 

~F\j '. :t M. o. '" 

~2'&: '1;;.:' . . ~~'~ 





POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

Notes to flnandal statement lor the year ended March 31, 2024 

"000 

Note. In~ome ta~ re<;ontlli~lion; 

Parll,ul;!rs 
Asat ,,,' 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Profit before tJ~ . 

Ta~ npenses reported dunn, the year · 
Intome tax expen~es calculated as per Income tax ra\t!S (assumed) · 
DIfference · . 

Pennanent disallowilnces 
Adjustment of current tu of prior Yi'ars . 
Olherltems · . 

Tolal · . 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT UMITED 

NOlf:$ tQ nn~nd .. 1 natement for the yur ended March 31, 2024 

27. C'r'''' COmmilml~ 1 
There are tIO Dis. ilmo"~1 of tontr..:u 

28. Contlnlen! Uabilities 

Particulars Aut A' it 
M.,.,h)1,2024 March 11, 202] 

Outstandinl tax matters: 
Under the prcIVl,lons of Income Tax Act, 1961 and related rules 220,)64,')24 220,36'1.924 

Under the provisions of Wealth Tax Act and related rule •. 1 304.242 1.304.242 

Total 221, 669,166 12l,669.166 

The "bove claims are subiect to legal proceeding at Y"rlOUS appellate a"thonties. The Company is contesting the 
above demands and the management Includ,ngil' ta.c advlson believes that Its posltioo wl!lllkely be I.Ipheld In 
the app"lIal<:, prOl:tss. The management believes thaI the ultimate ou tcome 01 these proceed;",. will not have iI 
material ildverse efftet on Ihe Compan(~ finanCIal position and re!ililts of operations. 

l'. Se,ment Reportinc 

The Comp.>ny·, oper.lions pre·<Iomir\llnt ly rl!'l,te. to con.tructlon " development of btrikiinS' and jnfr~.tructUfe. Tho 
Co"'~ny hIS considered the •• "nl! a. only _ repo!'1l", seamentln ~(OI.unce with lhe require"'efll of Ind AS 108 

~.t'''' St!snlefll' 

~ Board of Oore(lofS ("BOO"I ev. I".t~ tilt! COmpany's Ptriormilnte.nd .1I0Ule, rewurc~ t..$ed on an .... Iysl. of 

"arlo". periomun(1! Ind!citlO<li of this Stn,le Opefatlill se,men" The BOO revll!w. reverlUI! and IfOSS profit IS the 

perlarmance mdic.tor for thl' sin,le operat;", selrnent Acooro:iinll y. It con!litvte •• s • sln,l" rePOl'table operall", sqn>enl. 

(nlolV Wide OIsclowre. 

• I There IS"'" bi!'l0III'"110 l ilt! Company locate<! outside InclI" All .sset, ollhe company n e located within lnell. orotv 

2. Since th~e i, noOpefilloOl'1 durin, Doth the vea, s cove<ed by these financl.1 ,tluemenl$, IQllowinl enlny wide o:ihdo ... r~ 

as flNluired by Ino:! AS 109 "Opera u". St!lfMflll" are nol "pp/lc.bIe 10 \hecomoanv: 

II) BilurKalion of feYelllH! from extern.1 ("!lome,, by each ,roup of prodUCIS, 

1"1 fj lfUrK.tIon of nel ",Ie. to e Xlern.1 ,,,!lomers by , eoc<'pNc Ilea on the basis of location of CI.Istoml!rs, 

II .. ) Detoll, of customercon,nbull,.. lO'Ko.- more oftol.1 IllIIeflue of the company 

30, (afAlnl' P.r Sh •• (EPSI 

Year Ended Year Ended 

Plfticul..-s Mlrch )1, 2024 March 31, lOll 

Net Profit I (La •• ) for ulo;ul.tIon of basi<: I dlMed EPS 
(6,803,61:1 

(8 ,' 74,6241 

Wel,hll!d A"I!tI,e Number of tq ... ry S/1are~ In ukulllifll a,'llt: .nd Diluted £PS 14<000,200 \4 ,000,200 

a .. lc and Di luted hmln~S'(lOSS) Pe r Share (0 4' ) [0.&4) 

NOm",,,1 Value of EqUity Shar~ " " 
~\ ~~SS 

. ~?~ ~~' I O. : 
-. .M ". ~ 



POPULAR ESTATE MANAGEMENT LI MITED 

, " , cate,,,,,, .nd thel. f.;. ~.I"" 

I',,' Fa lrVllut 
2024 CIo .",ln, Amount (only those It ems whic h are 

1 ",,, "''' ""0'" 
1 1 1 1 1 , 

[NOn Current InW!stmenll · 8,287,100 8,287,100 · · 
1 · · 1,574,346 1,574,]46 · · 

· . 
, · 

~ ~ 
· · 

,,""'"'"' .. ~o 

1 1 1 1 

· · 79,788,8O~ 79,788.805 · · 
· · 4,080,138 4.080,138 · · 

,,,,",,,", U,M,,",, · · ~~ · · · , 
1 

1 .nd the" flirval"" 

1~;tM.'ch, 2023 
FII. V.I"e 

CIorrvl", Amo"nt tonly those items whlch.re 

1 • ,IF"" ' " TOO) 

"''' FVTOCI "',: Total I',,· ' lev<"l 2 l~<"I 1 Total 

I "",~d" .. ,'" 
InW!Slmenn · 8,287,100 · · 

[Otlll!f Non Currenl Fln"nclil As",,' s · · 1,574,146 1,574,346 
[rr"de Receiv.bIH · . · 

Equivalen ts · 153.783 lSl.781 · · , 1 · I,,.,, 60.89' · · 
1 " , 1 III 

, · 75,998,805 75,991,805 · · · · 
· · 
~~ 

· 

~."" , " 
!rlle a!:love fair value hierarchy e~ plains the flid&ements and estlmales made In determining the fall' values of the lin.,nda 
, rh' t . re t.) .ecO&"lsed and me~~red U fal. value and IbJ mearored at amortised cost for whldl f." v. lues In 

In the financial statements. Refer oote-4(_)l5) to these financial slitementS for the <letalls of Inpun ltsed ~ tm 
1 

, 1 

I"",~I 
department of the Company Includes i tea m Ihi! performs the \I.I".tlons 01 finlnc~1 n ... t. and I , f'l , vilues. The fal. v"l"atlon of level 1 and level , , 
, Quoted p<ices In the Open market.nd r"les """liable In second.", mat1(et respectivelv, 

[The canYlll1 amount of trade pavables, casll i ... d t.;.nk balances, employee benefit dues .re considered to 

I to lhelrshort·term nit"re. 

{f.'. AS 

" ~ < ~~. 04 ':\ 
'. ../ '. , . 



POPULAR ESTATf MANAGfMfNT LI MITED 

Notes to financl~1 statement for the year ended M~rch 31, 2024 

]2 f inanel,,1 risk management 

The Com~nv's actIvities expo§4! it to a variety of financial risks, Incl""'i"l credit risk. market risk and liquidity risk. The Com~ny's 
pnmal)' fi<lc management focus is to minlmile potent,al adver§4! effects of market risk on In financial performance. The 

Com~nv's risk management ust'ssment and poli<l~ al'd processn are est.abhshed to Identify and analyse the rlsks f~ by the 
Com~ny. to set 3pjlropriate risk limIts and controls, and to moMor such risks and compliance WIth lhe s-ame. 

The Com~n(s risk manaBement is BOvemed by policies approv<!d bV the board of d"ectOf"S. The Com~ny Identifies. evaluates 
and hedges financial risks In close co-operation with the Com~ny's operatlna units. The Com~ny has policies for overall nsk 
"",nagement. as well as poliCIes covering speclh, areas, such as for",gn "",change risk. inter",! nile risk. cred,t risk. uoe of non 
d"nvnlve financ,.llnstrum"nlS. 

Tt.e board of directors oversees how manag"menl moMOrs compliance wllh 11M! company's rosk mana,emenl policies and 

proc<!dures, and revIews Ihe adequacy of the risk management framework In relation to the fiskii faced by lhe Company. The 

board of directors is aSSisted in in oversIght r~e by Internal avd.t {maInly handled inhouse by Ih" team of flncance department) 

Inttrnal audIt undertakes both regular and ad·hoc reviews of risk manaKement controls and procedures. the results of whi<h are 

reported to the board 01 directors. 

Crecht risk Is the risk of financial Ian to the Company if a CUStomer or counterpart'( to ;t financial Instrument falls to meet 11..1 
<ontr;t(tual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receIvables from (~stomers. Credit risk Is managed thro\lllh 

credit apprOvals. Ht.abllshinc credIt limin. and continuouslV monItoring the creditworthiness of customers to which tilt! Company 
grann credIt terms in the normal courst of tJuslr>ess. The hIstory of vade receivables shows a negligible provillon for bad and 

doubtful debts. Thi! Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment thaI repr",ents Its estimate of e-peeted 

losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The company Is required to .ssess credit risk on followlllK asset5: 

II Trade Retel~ables: 

The Companys UpoSure loeredl,.uk Is influenced mainly by the ind,.,dual characteristitsof eKhcuSlomer. The demotlraphics of 

the customer, Including the default risk of tile IfldUSlryand countlY In which lhecustomer operates. also hu an Influence on credIt 
risk assessment The Company with various KtlYltle1i as men\loned above manaKes credit risk 

There Is no operation dUflng the periodS covered by lhese finantlill statements and hence the company Is not exposed to the 

credit risk durinK the periods covered by tlM!se financial statemenls Accordingly there is no ouutandlnS trade fe<eivables as at 
Hen billance sheet date and no need to ptow,de for allowJnce In respect of doubtful debts. 

II) Flnandal assets t haI are neither past due nor impaired 

Credtt risk from balances with banks and flnanclallnultul'ons Is managed by the Companv's treasul)' department In Keordance 

with the Companv's assessment of credIt fisk about partICular financial Institution. None of the Company, cash equlvalenu. 

includl"l other current financial assets, were paSt due or Impaired., a ' each balance sheet date. 
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are required tQ be made relatlns to Mk:ro, Sma!1 and Medium enterprises, On the ~sls of the I 

management, ouutandrng dues to the Mkro and Smalil!!lterprls.e as defined In the MSMED 
as below 

of Interest pard by the Company in terms of section 16 

of Interest due and P<lyable for tile period of delay in making 
(whoch ha~e been P<lld bul beyond the appoInted d;!y durin! the 

I".'l"""';"~"" .dd'''' the Interest specified unclerthe MSMEQ 

of Interest accrued and remalnml unPBrd at the eoo 

Company's uPlul management is Int",ded to maximise the return to stlareholOen and benefits lor '~:~:,::;'~;:::::~:,:;I 
the long term and shor1 term goals of the Company: and reduce the cost of upitalthrough the optimilBtionof t 

I"~"";' the debt and eQuity ~lance_ 

monllon the capital Structure on lhe baSIS of Net debt to EquIty ratio and matunty profile of the o~erall 

t o auditors: 
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I Notes to financial sratemenl for the year e"ded March 31, 2024 

" UQuldltv Risk 

liquidity ri~k Is the risk that the Company will not be ~ble to meet Its financial obligatio", as they bKome due_ The level of 

liqu,d,ty risk is very low tonsidennll the fact that the company rell~ on operatins cashllows and owned equity. Currently the 

company has borrowed fundS from biln~ ma'nly for the spe<:iflc vehicles considering business nuds. r.lI!re are no short lerm loans 
the company hiS borrowed. 

Furthef the ComPfny manases Ilqu,dity risk by ma,ntain,ng adequate reserves, by continuously rnonitOl'ing the forecasted & actual 
cash Ilows <lnd, matching the maturity profiles of financial assets & financIal liabilities. Long·ttrm borrowings stnefally mature 

between One to Ten yean. The Company manages Its liquidity rlslo; by ensuring. as far as possible, that il will always have suffICient 

liqu,d,ty to meet Its lIab'lItles when due. 

The promotors of Ihe Company believe In equity fundi", rather Ihan reryl", on borrowed funds. The company can borrow funds 
from their Pfomoton as and when requlr!d. The tables below analyle Ihe company's flnanclaillabilities Into r~evant maturity 
Irouplng. ba'ied on tl>e\r con\r;OCIUilI mawritil"S 

Tho! Imounts d,scio'ied 'n the table are the tontractUilI undiscOunted cash flows. ~Iances due wllh,n 12 months e(!wl the .. 
carry'ns balances as the ,mpact of d,scount,n8 is not sign,flcant. 

Coolraclual maluritles of 
ConlrKtL.lf Cash FloWli 

financialliabililies as al 
Carrylns On demand Over3yurs 

Over 1 year Over 5 
March n, 2024 

Amount orwllhln 1 withIn 5 Total 
wilhln 2 vears 

Vt!'l rs 
vurs 

vur 
Non.currenl Borrow,nllS 79,788,805 - - 11,200,000 611,588,805 7!J,788,805 
Trade Payables 4,080,]38 4,08O,l38 - - 4,080,l38 
0I1Ie-r Current Financial 582,000 S82,000 - - 582,000 
UabHltie. 

TOIal 84,450,943 4,662,118 Nil 11,200,000 68,588,805 84,450,943 

• 
Contf3C1ua) maturit ies of 

Contritt ua) Ca$l1 Flows 

fjnanclalllabilities n al 
Carrylnl Ondf'mand 

Ovt!'r 1 year 
Over] years 

OverS 
Amount 0< wIthin 1 witllfn5 Total 

March 31, 2023 
yur 

within 2 years 
Vt!'ars 

years 

NI)O·current 6ofrow,"ss 7S.998,805 - 4,432,299 11,200,000 60,366,506 75,998,805 

Tritle Payables 2,962,600 2,'62,600 - - - 2,962,600 

Other Current fonanc,al 582.000 582,000 - - 582,000 

Liabilit,es 

TOlal 79,S4).405 3,S44,600 4,432,299 11,200,000 60,]66,506 7',S43,40S 

'" Mari<et Rlsk 
Market risk Is the fiSk of loss 01 future earnl"l5, f,lr v'lues Orlulure cash flows thaI may result from adverse ehaflSes In mjlHkt!'\ 
rates and prices (such 85 interest files, lore'l" curre-ncy ellchange rates and commodity jIf><:es) or In tile p!"ke of mar~et risk· 
sto5'live Instruments as <I result of such .doerst (hanae. In market rates Ind prices. Market risk Is attributable 10 all market risk 

sensitive linancialinstrumenls, all foreign currency tel:elvabies and payabies and all short term and Iona·term debt The Compaoy 
is expo'ied to any markt!'1 risk duri", the yean cowred by tl'lest financial Sl'tements. Components of mari<t!'t risk are speclfled 

below: 
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currency risk is the ris~ that tht 1.1" val\lt or f~wrt cuh flows of ~n exposurt will f1UCtua!t bec:~~ of ctw.,,&es In 

1.""'" rales 

I~;:;::::::';~ donot haVi! any currtncy risle dunn, bolh tht ytars as tht rompany didnot enltr Into any transaction which 
I' lortllf' currency. AU uansact!ons are in Indian Rupees only 

Risk 

I':::::',::::;";i;sk is tht fisk that the falf valut or futurt ush flows 01. financi.1 instrument will fluctuate because of cha,,&es I 
I' r111!i. The Company Is not exposed to the risk of changes In market Inltre1\ raIn II the com~ny ""~."""I 

borrow in, wUh lIoaun, Intere.1 rain. la .... lerm borrowI"V I, ha",,,, fixed r,lIe 01 interes wlIleh doesIiol fluctuale wllh 
In the ml.ket.ites 

18"",~"'O ,,""' .. ,~'"",., the company's borrowing 10 Inttrest rate ch<>"lIes at Ihe end Dillie reponing period i,e 

" . i raIl' 
any variable rate borrowing. profit or loss is not sensitive 10 the hlgt>er/lowtf I 

01 cha ... n In (nternl rates 

Comp;!nv's operations pre·dominamly relates to Wnltl'Ul:lion & development of buildings "nd InlrolS!ructure. bposure 
fisk WIth respect to wmmodity pr~es promarlly arises from tht Company's purCh(lSe of land. purchase 

17.:::,::~' :comrut rates for hlr;", labo~r is well is sail prices of units of the haU$I ... 1 commertcal buildi.,. constructed 
1< the company. These 'lin generllily Iktnol fjl,Kluate ~Inlr~antly oversha.t pe<iods of time but may fluctuate I 

Price risk exposure Is evaluned and maflaged throuah operatlf\£ procedures and $(l\lrclng policies. 

Is no Opefat!on In both the years covered by these financl,1 statements. the company!s not exposed \0 anv price 




		2024-08-24T13:42:04+0530
	VIKRAM CHHAGANLAL PATEL




